# of the THIRTY-SIXTH ANNUAL SESSION of the NATIONAL ASSOCIATION When convened in FORT WORTH, TEXAS July 10-13, 1972

1973 Session
Macon, Georgia
July 9-12

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

OFFICERS AND BOARD MEMBERS
General Officers
Boards
Commissions
DELEGATE REGISTRATION
Ministers
Lay Delegates
State Delegates
Local Church Delegates
PROCEEDINGS
NATIONAL OFFICE REPORTS
Home Missions
Church Training Service
Free Will Baptist Bible College
Foreign Missions
Executive Church Bonds
Board of Retirement and Insurance
Sunday School Department
Executive Office
Woman's National Auxiliary Convention
CONVENTION REPORTS
Committee on Committees
Credentials Committee
Nominating Committee
Commission on Theological Liberalism
General Board
NAE Study Committee
Historical Commission
Historical Commission
Resolutions

### 3 - OFFICERS AND BOARD MEMBERS

### OFFICERS AND BOARD MEMBERS

### GENERAL OFFICERS

Moderator	Dr. J. D. O'Donnell
Assistant Moderator	. Reverend Bobby Jackson
Clerk	Reverend Waldo Young
Assistant Clerk	. Reverend Lloyd Plunkett
Executive Secretary-Treasurer	Reverend Rufus Coffey

### **BOARDS**

### **GENERAL BOARD**

(Terms expire in 1973) Tom Malone, Alabama; B. A. Jenkins, Arizona; Fred Warner, Arkansas; Edward Johns, California; Wingate Hansley, Florida; A. C. Truluck, Georgia; Bill Johnson, Idaho; Wallace Malone, Illinois; Kenneth Cade, Indiana; Trymon Messer, Kansas; Fred Hawkins, Kentucky; Lester Horton, Maryland; Jerry Barron, Mexico; J. B. Varney, Michigan; Van Dale Hudson, Mississippi; Dale Skiles, Missouri; (Terms expire in 1974) T. B. Gartman, New Mexico; Ronald Creech, North Carolina; Mack Owens, Northeast Association; Milan Ruble, Northwest Association; Clarence Newman, Ohio; Robert Duncan, Oklahoma; Norwood Gibson, South Carolina; Clarence Phillips, Tennessee; Bobby Ferguson, Texas; Fred Green, Virginia; Carl Valance, West Virginia.

### EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

(Elected from the General Board): Van Dale Hudson, Mississippi; Ronald Creech, North Carolina; Wingate Hansley, Florida; Lester Horton, Maryland; J. D. O'Donnell, Missouri; Waldo Young, Oklahoma; Bobby Jackson, North Carolina.

Chairman: Dr. J. D. O'Donnell, 1060 S. Grant, Springfield, Mo. 65804 Clerk: Rev. Waldo Young, 8517 N.E. 25th, Spencer, Okla. 73084

### **BIBLE COLLEGE TRUSTEES**

Randy Cox, Mississippi; Delmer Priest, California; Bill Robinson, North Carolina (1974) - Luther Gibson, Mississippi; Damon Dodd, Georgia; M. E. Howard, Virginia (1976) - Owen Thomas, North Carolina; William Mishler, Illinois; Ben Scott, Arkansas (1978).

Chairman: Rev. William Mishler, 704 E. 9th, Johnson City, III. 62951 President: Dr. L. C. Johnson, 3606 West End Ave., Nashville, Tenn. 37205

### CHURCH TRAINING SERVICE

Ken Riggs, Tennessee (1973); Eugene Hales, North Carolina (1974); Milton Worthington, Mississippi (1975); Dale Burden, Virginia (1976); Ted Wilbanks, Oklahoma (1977); Charles Harris, California (1978); Lynn Wood, Missouri (1979).

Chairman: Rev. Eugene Hales, P. O. Box 398, Warsaw, N.C. 28398 Director: Rev. Malcolm Fry, P. O. Box 1088, Nashville, Tenn. 37202

### FOREIGN MISSIONS

Rolla Smith, Georgia (1973); Guy Owens, North Carolina (1974); Joe Ange, Tennessee (1975); James Murray, Oklahoma (1976); Gene Rogers, California (1977); Eugene Waddell, Tennessee (1978); Raymond Riggs, Michigan (1979)

Chairman: Rev. Joe Ange, 606 McDonald Court, Nashville, Tenn. 37217 Director: Rev. Reford Wilson, P. O. Box 1088, Nashville, Tenn. 37202

### HOME MISSIONS AND CHURCH EXTENSION

Frank Davenport, North Carolina (1973); J. E. Blanton, Georgia (1974); Robert Shockey, Alabama (1975); Don Pegram, Virginia (1976); John Edwards, Arizona (1977); Gordon Sebastian, North Carolina (1978); Jim McAllister, Missouri (1979)

Chairman: Rev. Gordon Sebastian, 509 Harrison Dr., Wilson, N.C. 27893 Director: Rev. Homer E. Willis, P. O. Box 1088, Nashville, Tenn. 37202

### LAYMEN'S BOARD

Glen Harlinger, Iowa (1973); Kimble Crossley, Mississippi (1974); Doyle Terry, Kansas (1975); Kenneth Lane, Oklahoma (1976); O. B. Everson, Georgia (1977); Ivan Van Winkle, Oklahoma (1978); Lloyd Olson, Hawaii (1979) Chairman: Kenneth Lane, Box 151, Norman, Oklahoma 73069

### RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE

Ray Turnage, Tennessee (1973); Leroy Scudder, Texas (1974); E. M. Kennedy, Texas (1975); William Evans, Missouri (1976); Ernest Harrison, Oklahoma (1977); Harold Critcher, Tennessee (1978); Ronald Niebruegge, N.C. (1979) General Manager: Rev. Herman Hersey, Box 326, Garner, N.C. 25729

### SUNDAY SCHOOL BOARD

James Earl Raper, Tennessee (1973); Herman Hersey, North Carolina (1974); Bob Followwill, Arkansas (1975); Billy Morris, Virginia (1976); Galen Dunbar, Michigan (1977); Homer Young, Oklahoma (1978); G. C. Lee, Tennessee (1979)

Chairman: Rev. Herman Hersey, Box 326, Garner, North Carolinaa 25729 Director: Rev. Roger Reeds, P. O. Box 1088, Nashville, Tennessee 37202.

### NATIONAL OFFICE TRUSTEES

J. L. Welch, Tennessee (1973); G. W. Hunt, Tennessee (1974); Garner Caldwell, Tennessee (1975); Benny Smith, Tennessee (1976); Frank Rudy, Tennessee (1977); Herbert Peppers, Tennessee (1978); Jack Nicholson, Tennessee (1979)

Chairman-Rev. J. L. Welch, 4911 Raywood, Nashville, Tennessee 37211

### COMMISSIONS

### THEOLOGICAL LIBERALISM

Mark Vandivort, Missouri (1973), Willie Justice, South Carolina (1974); J. D. O'Donnell, Missouri (1975); Van Dale Hudson, Mississippi (1976); Leroy Forlines, Tenn. (1977)

Chairman: Rev. Leroy Forlines, 3606 West End Ave., Nashville, Tenn. 37205.

### HISTORICAL

DeArthur Yandell, California (1973); E. E. Morris, Oklahoma (1974);

Ronald Creech, N.C. (1975)

Chairman: Rev. Ronald Creech, Box 11277, E. Durham Station, Durham, N.C. 27703

### DELEGATE REGISTRATION

### **MINISTERS**

### ALABAMA

William Baird, Belk, 35545 Louie Bates, Box 12, Graysville, 35073 Hermon C. Calloway, 120 Donna Dr., Dothan, 36301 Levy Corey, Rt. 1, Russeliville, 35653 J. M. Dutton, Jr., 702 Whitmire St., N.E. Leeds, 35094 Jerry W. Edgil, 12 Crescent Lane, Tuscaloosa, 35401 Ronald Edgil, Rt. 1, Town Creek, 35672 Hughes Ellis, 504 Green Ave., Cordova 35550 Robert D. Franks, P. O. Box 473, Vernon, 35552 Jerome E. Goodwin, Rt. 2, Box 399A, Pell City, 35125 Donald H. Grice, 120 Hill Crest Dr., Eufaula 36027 Clifford Holland, 701 Branch St., Florence 35630 Walter D. Jaggers, Box F, Townley, 35587 Walter E. Jones, 2011 2nd Ave., Phenix City, 36867

A. J. Lambert, Rt. 6, Box 294,
Jasper, 35501 A. J. Looper, Rt. 3, Box 66, Hartselle 35640 Tom Malone, 165 Chaparral Dr., Florence 35630 E. R. Mayo, Rt. 2, Box 611, Adamsville 35005 Byron Meyer, 4014 6th St., E., Tuscaloosa 35401 Thurmon Murphy, 2317 18th Ave., Northport, 35476 Steve Nichols, 942 N. Temple Ave., Fayette 35555 Bobby Ned Peters, Rt. 2, Box 118, Newton 36352 John Pettis, Rt. 2, Slocomb 36375 J. M. Pickett, 3206 Star Route, Mulga 35118 James A. Pittman, Rt. 2, Box 222, Guin 35563 E. A. Riggs, Rt. 2, Guin 35563

Ray W. Ritch, 724 12th Ct., West,

Jack L. Rollins, 920 Meehan Ave.,

Robert L. Shockey, 1704 Landau Ct., Dothan 36301

Birmingham 35204

Birmingham 35214

Birmingham 35212

Billy Sharpston, P. O. Box 582,

Vernon 35592

James Walden, Box 553,

Guin 35563 J. D. Wales, 4416 10th Ave. N.,

### ARIZONA

Orbin H. Doss, 3009 East Vagas Ave., Phoenix 85008 John A. Edwards, 2917 East Devon, Tucson 85716

### ARKANSAS

Boyd R. Allen, Rt. 1, Box 73, Star City 71667 Thomas Brashear, P. O. Box, Russellville, 72081 Gene Bishop, Box 115, Plainview, 72857 W. H. Bostic, 1444 Phillip Dr., Jacksonville, 72076 Richard Bowers, 3010 Orange St., Pine Bluff, 71601 Don Brewer, 710 So. State St., Newport, 72112 Henry Brown, Box 7, Charleston 72733 Carl Cheshier, 8224 Cypress, Ft. Smith 72901 Raymond Chronister, Rt. 3, Box 179, Star City 71667 Lawnie Coffman, 113 Highland Dr., Searcy 72143 L. C. Crowder, 4501 No. 32 St., Ft. Smith 72901 Jack R. Dodson, Rt. 3, Box 112, Crossett 71635 Noel Easterling, 2707 Fracie Way, Springdale 72764 Jack Gilbert, 711 Belle Ave., Ft. Smith, 72901 R. D. Hester, 115 E. "H" St., Russellville 72081 J. C. Holderfield, Rt. 3, Box 586 A, Ft. Smith Terrell Holland, P. O. Box 9, Grubbs, 72431 David A. Joslin, 39 Mohawk, Searcy 72143 Glenn Lewis, P. O. Box 86, Pocahontas 72455 Hoover Lewis, 430 Blossom Dr., Batesville 72501 R. H. McCuin, Rt. 1, Box 325, Warren 71671 Jim McKown, Rt. 1. Van Buren 72596 Gilbert Pixley, 2705 Alma Blvd., Van Buren 72953 R. E. Pixley, 4017 Armour, Ft. Smith 72901 John J. Postlewaite, 3118 Ware St., Little Rock 72204 Bob Rackley, Atkins 72823 Sidney Sawrie, Rt. 2, Vilonia 72173 Ben Scott, 2001 Parkway Dr., N. Little Rock 72118 J. R. Shade, 816 E. 1st, Mountain Home 62653

Lonnie Skiles, 1009 Hester, Jonesboro 72401 Loyd Thomas, 1044 S. Garland, Fayetteville 72707 Fred Warner, P. O. Box 1404, Conway 72032 O. D. Winfrey, 708 W. Hazel, Walnut Ridge 72476 Roy L. Winson, Rt. 1, Box 78, Hatfield 71945

### CALIFORNIA

Chester S. Burgess, P. O. Box 326, College City, 95931 Adrian B. Condit, 1816 Gail St., Ceres 95307 E. B. Condit, 1869 Elderwood Dr., Concord 94520 Larry Condit, 1143 Green St., Salinas 93901 Virgil Florence, 8746 Cedar St., Bellflower 90796 Joe Grizzle, 5570 Olinda Rd., El Sobrante 74803 Vern Gunnels, Jr., 3011 N. Demaree Rd., Visalia 93277 Johnnie Hale, P. O. Box 1066, Anderson 96007 Claudie Hames, 930 Exchange, Bakersfield 93307 Tom Hunt, 30376 Richland Dr., Shafter 93263 Ron Jackson, 232 W. Dawn Dr., Modesto 95350 Wade T. Jernigan, 4881 E. University, Fresno 93703 Edward Johnson, 1908 Stanley Ave., Corcoran 93212 Winston Lawless, 432 Bermuda Way, Modesto 95350 Doice McAlister, 2217 Greer Rd., Turlock 95380 Dean Moore, 1726 Lincoln Ave., Richmond 94801 Charles P. Roam, 10681 So. Highland, Selma 93662 Gene Rogers, 911 No. 6th St., Oxnard 93030 Lonnie L. Rolen, 2913 E. Northdale, Fresno, 93726 Rex Sherman, 1254 San Moritz Dr., San Jose 95132 Bob Thomas, 11242 Ferino, Norwalk 90650 Dale Vanderburg, 239 N. I., Lompoc 93436 Edwin L. Wade, 8782 Lampson, Garden Grove 92641 Jerry Watson, 4415 Damsen Lane. Visalia 93277 Jack L. Williams, 4881 E. University Ave., Fresno 93703 Carl K. Young, 200 Ely Blvd. So., Petaluma 94952 Ronald Young, 106 Van Buren,

### COLORADO

Taft 93268

Gary Carstens, 1410 So. Vine Street, Denver 80210

David McDaniel Denver

### **FLORIDA**

Bill Cathey, 7091 Hood St.,

Hollywood 33024 Robert Chastain, P. O. Box 116, Scottsmoor 32775 Milton B. Fields, 2681 Sadler Lane, Melhourne 32935 Milton R. Gann, 2203 W. Orlando Rd., Panama City 32401 W. A. Hansley, 1812 N. E. 28th St., Ocala 32670 Harvey Henderson, Rt. 4, Box 5, Marianna 32446 Bob King, 9101 N. W. 29 Ave., Miami 33147 Sie Newberry, Rt. 5, Box 228, Quincy 32351 David P. Pettis, 100 Air Force St., Ft. Walton Beach 32548 James R. Puckett, 1417 S. E. 3rd Terrace, Deerfield Beach 33441 Eddie Riddick, Rt. 4, Box 328, Chipley 32428 H. Reedy Saverance, 5636 Colvin Ave., Jacksonville 32208 Joseph R. Wallis, Rt. 1, Box 269, Atmore, Alabama 36502 Hollis L. Warren, Rt. 2 Lake Butler 32054

### GEORGIA

L. S. Anthony, Rt. 3, Thomaston 30286 Jerry C. Banks, 574 Pine St., Colquitt 31737 Billy Bevan, 117 Perry Ave., Blakely 31723 J. E. Blanton, 3427 Wickham Drive. Atlanta 30032 Gerald E. Brown, Box 42, Pineview 31071 Leslie C. Carney, 1302 Pineview Dr., Valdosta 31601 J. M. Creech, 106 Bacon St., Jesup 31545 Paul A. Davis, 2228 Tara Lane, Brunswick 31601 Cadel Dowdney, P. O. Box 51, Baconton 31716 Kenneth Faison, Rt. 2, Hazlehurst 31539 O. L. Fields, 106 Glendale Ave., Baxley, 31513 Don Keheley, 164 B & W Grade Rd., Brunswick 31520 Alton E. Loveless, 5320 Longmeadow Lane, Atlanta 30349 Buddy Morris, 303 Marvin Ave.,

Statesboro 30458 Harris B. Nix, St., Rt. 4, Box 100, Jesup 31545

J. D. Norris, Jr., Rt. 3, Colquitt 31737

Joe D. Owens, 2560 Echols Pl.,

Macon 31206 Thomas M. Parrish, 690 10th Ave., S.E., Cairo 31728

Don Reed, Rt. 2, Leary 31762 Rolla D. Smith, 5210 Skidaway Rd., Savannah 31404 A. C. Truluck, P. O. Box 591, Moultrie 31768 Joe Dan Underwood, Rt. 3, Glennville 30427

### HAWAII

R. Luther Sanders, P. O. Box 1201, Waipahu 96797

### IDAHO

Bill Johnson, 820 S. Cleveland, Jerome 83338 Daniel W. Parker, Howe 83244

### **ILLINOIS**

Claude Hampleman, Rt. 5, Centralia 62801 Wallace Malone, 2850 N. 22nd St., Decatur 62526 Jim Martin, Box 400, Colona 61241 Jessie Meade, 10 Dennis Ct., Joliet 60433 Wayne Meade, 1316 26th St., Moline 61265 Billy A. Melvin, 420 Bridle Lane, Wheaton 60187 William J. Mishler, 704 E. 9th St., Johnson City, 62951 Larry Montgomery, 1531 Hollycrest. Aurora 60506 Gene Norris, P. O. Box 611, Benton 62812 Jerry L. Norris, 365 Silver St., Eigin 60120 James O'Dell, Rt. 1, Box 47, Sesser 62884 George E. Ritter, Rt. 2, Box 126, Marion 62959 Jim Summerson, 2707 N. 27th St., Decatur 62526 George W. Waggoner, 800 Meadowbrook Rd., Mt. Vernon 62864 Jim Walker, 113 Southard, So. Roxana 62087

So. Roxana 62087

INDIANA

W. M. Gardner, Jr., 2306 Brann Rd.,
New Castle Lane, 47362

W. H. Patterson, R. R. 1, Box 42,
Dalayille 47334 Daleville 47334

Robert G. Wood, 2727 S. Centralway,
Anderson 46011

IOWA

Leland Horton, 3048 Bellevue Ave.,
Bettendorf 52722

KANSAS Daleville 47334

Robert H. Clyatt, 605 Congress, Emporia 66801  $\infty$ 

Jack Ledbetter, 331 N. Athenion, Wichita 67203 Trymon Messer, 902 Maple, Salina 67401 Grover Terry, 2427 Lydia, Wichita 67213 Marvin M. William, 6520 Ward Parkway, Wichita 67217

### KENTUCKY

Vernon Barker, 409 Cross St., Louisa 41230 Eddie Dollar, 2408 Bath Ave., Ashland 41101 Fred Hawkins, 223 Washington Ave., Pantsville 41240 Jesse Webb, Rt. 1, Guthrie 42234

### LOUISIANA

Billy Joe Aulds, Rt. 2 Downsville 71234 Bill Davidson, 131 40th St., New Orleans 70124

### MARYLAND

Lester Horton, 63 Waples Court, Fairfax, Va. 22039

### MICHIGAN

Curtis Beculhimer, 1212 Wendell, Upsilanti 48197 James E. Daniels, 7604 Robinson, Allen Park 48101 Galen F. Dunbar, 931 E. Woodruff St., Hazel Park 48030 Loyd Lockyear, 26191 Allen Rd., Woodhaven 48183 Herman McFaddin, 1760 Baldwin Ave., Pontiac 48055 Joseph Wm. Mullens, 490 Beiton, Garden City 48135 William T. Newsome, 4946 Clippert, Dearborn Hgts, 48125 James C. Powell, 3730 Whittier St., Flint 48055 Raymond Riggs, 3028 Elmhurst, Royal Oak 48073 W. H. Teague, 1045 Woodward Hgts. Blvd., Hazel Park 48030 Robert Trimble, 10911 Longview. Detroit 48213 James B. Varney, 25590 Wick, Taylor 48180 Lincoln Varney, 2004 Scotten, Detroit 48209 Eddie L. Vincent, 726 E. George, Hazel Park 48030 Leroy Welch, 2300 N. Wilson, Royal Oak, 48073

### MISSISSIPPI

E. H. Brock, Rt. 2, Box 242, Saltillo 38866 Randy Cox, 613 Browder St., Columbus 39701

Malcolm L. Garrett, 407 Nelson, Corinth 38834 Luther D. Gibson, 145 North Lake, Booneville 38829 J. L. Gore, P. O. Box 777, Bonneville 38829 Odell Harris, Rt. 1, Smithville 38870 Van Dale Hudson, 102 Tubb Road, Amory 38821 R. P. Ritch, 1019 Shady St., Columbus 39701 J. K. Walley, Rt. 3, Waynesboro 39367

Melvin Worthington, 504 9th Ave. No., Amory 38821 Milton Worthington, 107 S. Canal St., Tupelo 38801

MISSOURI Billy G. Adkisson, 525 W. Normal Springfield 65804 James Barker, Rt. 2, Box 28C Farmington 63640 Harry Beatty, 2244 Tenbrook Rd. Arnold 63010 Cliff Bowman, 625 N. O'DEII Marshall 65340 Dennis Bowman, 410 E. Kansas Independence 64050 Richard E. Brown, 400 W. Chestnut St. Desloge 63601 Jimmie Bundy, 103 W. Nulta St. Fredericktown 63645 C. H. Burton, 8914 Springdale Berkeley 63134 Cecil H. Campbell, Stella 64867 Ken Doggett, 337 Davis Ct. Flat River 63601 William W. Evans, 303 W. Columbia Farmington 63640 Robert A. Francis, 2612 Minnesota St. Louis 63118 Frank Guinta, 1317 Moreland Jefferson City 65101 Kenneth H. Goft, 306 Cedar Flat River 63601 Ernie Hale Myrtle 65549 Roger Harwell, 286 Brice Lebanon 65536 Dale Jones, 1122 E. 77th Kansas City 64131 Johnnie Land, 3935 Miami St. Louis 63116 Andy W. Lay, 2301 Connecticut Joplin 64801 O'Fallon 63366

Donald W. Lombard, 716 Sandy Lane Charles L. Miller, Box 207 Desoto 63020 Henry J. Murray, 10518 Spring Gardan St. Louis 63137 James W. McAllister, 107 W. Sycamore Monett 65708 Gene McCully, 1403 Park St.

Mtn. Grove 65711

Springfield 65804

Kirksville 63501

J. D. O'Donnell, 1150 South Main

Jerry Pinkerton, 13014 E. Washington

Robert R. Sharry, 1139 So. Porter Ave. Aurora 65605 Dale Skiles, Lebo Route West Plains 65775 Glenn Rehkop, 751 Leolia Dr. Arnold 63010 Millard C. Sasser, 8517 Palmetto Dr. St. Louis 63123 George I. Stitt, P. O. Box 100 Kirksville 63501 R. Spurgeon, 3824 Midview Bridgeton 63044 Lawrence Thompson, 3416 Bellefontaine Kansas City 64117 Elmer O. Turnbough, Box 272 Viburnum 65566 David Turner, 523 East 9th St. Mtn. Grove 65711 J. Mark Vandivort, 1807 Grindstone Columbia 65201 Lynn Wood, Box 464 Mtn. Grove 65711

### **NEW MEXICO**

Blaine Bishop, 319 So. Sycamore St., Roswell 88201

NORTH CAROLINA Billy Allen, Rt. 1, Box 144. Nebo 28761 Joe Ange, 1301 Clinton Road Durham 27703 W. G. Best, 105 Howark Dr. Greennville 27834 Earl Bittle, Rt. 1, Box 416-B Black Mountain 28711 Harley C. Brown, Rt. 8, Box 265 Greenville 27834 J. F. Cantrell Swannanoa 28778 Ronald Creech, Box 11277 E. Durham Sta. **Durham 27703** Al Davis, 518 Westchester Dr. Greenville 27834 James Denton, Rt. 3 Fuquay 27526 Sigbee Dilda, P. O. Box 478 New Bern 28560 James R. Dixon, P. O. Box 254 Stacy 28581 Dean Dobbs, Rt. 6, Box 234 **Durham 27703** Harvey W. Dupree, 704 Chestnut St. Scotland Neck 27874 R. A. Gaskins, Box 102 Ayden 28513 Lonnie Graves, Rt. 5, Box 4, **Durham 27704** Robert S. Hagler, 110 Arrington Dr. Lexington 27292 Eugene Hales, Rt. 2, Box 136

Warsaw 28398 Herman L. Hersey, Box 326 Garner 27529 William B. Hill, 631 Eastway ロr.

Charlotte 28205 A. L. "Bud" Hines, 2305 Southern Dr.

Durham 27703 Billy Jackson, P. O. Box 146 Cove City 28523

Bobby Jackson, 1412 E. 14th Greenville 27834 Carl R. Johnson, 5124 Peppercorn St. Durham 27703 Thomas K. Johnson, 401 Southern Blvd. Wilmington 28401 Willie Justice, Hookerton 28538 J. P. Langley, 205 Hames St. Lexington 27292 Thomas L. Lilly, Rt. 4, Box 209 Smithfield 27577 Frank McQuage, P. O. Box 965 Rockingham 28479 Ron Niebruegge, 103 E. Langnon Ave. Smithfield 27577 Dave Nobles, Rt. 5, Box 62A Greenville 27834 Billy Gene Outland, 2911 Old Cherry Rd. New Bern 28560 Ronnie Peele, 1403 9th St. Goldsboro 27530 Chester R. Phillips, 301 Martinsborough Rd. Greenville 27834 Harold A. Pitts, Box 1346 Canton 38716 Jerry Rackley, 901 Everett St. Ahoskie 29710 Douglas Randlett, 113 Holliday Ct. Greenville 27834 William Reagan, 210 Bridges St., Box 866 Morehead City 28557 Ted R. Reynolds, P. O. Box 385 Caroleen 28019 R. J. Reynolds, P. O. Box 238 Nebo 28761 Roy Rikard, 426 Woodlawn Ave. Cramerton 28032 Bill Robinson, Rt. 3, Box 297 Dunn 28334 Jason M. Salyer, Rt. 1, Box 390-B Marion 28752 Murray T. Sparks, 907 Edgemont Avenue Belmont 28012 Glenn Thomas, Box 441 Davis 28524 I. Bennie Turner, P. O. Box 13 Micro 37555 Billy B. Walker, 301 Nichols Dr. Greenville 27834 Dennis Wiggs, 301 Fairview Dr. Beaufort 28516 R. Bob Woodard, P. O. Box 14345 R. Bob Woodard, P. O. Box 14345
Raleigh 27610

OHIO

Hobert Ashby, 626 Fulmer Dr.
Dayton 45403
James H. Cox, Jr., 3496 W. 60th S
Cleveland 44102
Russel Dicken, 2129 Michigan St.
Toledo 43611
VNedo Eaddy, 910 Center St.
Ashland 44805
Blaine Etterling, 6847 Shela Blvd.
Portsmouth 45662

K. I. Erisbee 2060 Congo St. James H. Cox, Jr., 3496 W. 60th St. K. L. Frisbee, 2060 Congo St. Akron 44305 CE Elmer Huff, 6752 Lewis Center Rd. Galena 43021 Wm. C. Jones, Rt. 1

Irwin 43029

John E. Jeffery Sr., 6730 Antrin Rd. Elyria 44035 Lewis J. Jeffries, 136 Bell Ave. Elyria 44035 Bobby J. Mabry, Rt. 1 Irwin 43029 Oral Maggard, Rt. 3, Clay St. Wheelersburg 45694 Robt. L. Maynard, 3997 Hopper Hill Rd. Cincinnati 45230 Bill McCarty, 42 Maple St. Canfield 44406 Elda D. Mingres, 847 Brookdale Dr. West Jefferson 43162 C. A. Newman, Rt. 1 Galloway 43119 Richard Pressnell, 3696 E. 50th Cleveland 44105 Larry Russell, Rt. 2, Van Dyke Wheelersburg, 45594 Melvin Sanford, Rt. 1 Irwin 43029 Delmar C. Sparks, 248 Cherrington Ave. Westerville 43018 Fred T. Taylor, 8833 Fremont Pike Perrysburg 43551 Paul Thompson, 1933 Berkley Rd. Columbus 43207 Floyd Wolfenbarger, Rt. 1 London 45505

### OKLAHOMA

Delbert Akin, 940 W. 22nd Ada 74820 Herman Arnold, Rt. 1 Farris 74526 John Ballard, 6231 N. Utica Pl. Tulsa 74130 Melvin Batson, Box 152 Nicoma Park 73066 Chas. A. Bigger, 731 W. Jackson McAlester 74501 David L. Bigger, Rt. 2, Box 63A Jennings Silver City 74038 Roy Bingham, 714 W. Vandever Broken Arrow 74012 Joe Blair, 206 N. 8th Noble 73068 Wayne Bookout, 209 Summit Sand Springs 74063 Henry Braisher, 147 Bluestem Weatherford 73096 Charles Brazeal, P. O. Box 1292 Sapulpa 74066 Roy Bryant, 712 So. 59th Ave. Tulsa 74127 Pete Butler, Box 282 Crowder 74430 Dock Caton, 414 N. Quapaw Skiatook 74070 C. D. Cariker, 922 W. 23rd Place Tulsa 74107 James Cearley, P. O. Box 6343 Moore 73160 J. B. Chism, Jr., 3110 S. 65 W. Ave. Tulsa 74107 Doyle Cox, 401 Patton Ave. Wewoka 74884 Clayton B. Crafton, Rt. 2 Bixby 74008 LeRoy Davenport, Rt. 1 Indianola 74442

Lonnie DeVoult, 4301 South Walker
Clark and City 73100
Oklahoma City 73109
O. T. Dixon, Box 873
Norman 72060
Gary Dodson, P. O. Box 584
Gary Dodson, P. O. Box 584 Haskell 74436
Haskell 74436
Buddy Drake, Box 31 Oaks 74359
Oaks 74359
Jerry Dudley, 29 S. E. 57
Jerry Dudley, 25 3. L. 37
Oklahoma City 73129
Oklahoma City 73114
D 1
Oklahoma City 73114 Dan L. Farmer, 617 SW 3rd St. Moore, 73160
Moore, 73160
Floyd Ferguson, Rt. 1, Box 23A Wewoka 74884
1Alexandra 74994
J. B. Fletcher, 1229 N. 94 E. Ave.
J. B. Fletcher, 1229 N. 94 E. Ave.
Triles /4/11b
Howard Gage, RR2, Box 100 Pryor 74361
Howard Gage, hhz, box 100
Pryor 74361
Richard Gallant, 314 S. 4th
Haddton 72420
mealutuii /3438
Ray Gwartney, 1220 E. Graham Ct.
Prvor 74361
Richard Gallant, 314 S. 4th Healdton 73438 Ray Gwartney, 1220 E. Graham Ct. Pryor 74361 Jim Haas, 414 N. Quapaw
Jili Haas, 414 N. Quapaw
SKIALOUK 74070
J. R. Hall, 1333 S. W. 61
Oldsbares City 72150
Oklahoma City 73159
Chas, E. Hampton, 802 W. 39th
Clause Meerre 604 S 2th St
Leon Hargrove, Rt. 1, Box 95
Oologah 74053
Ernest Harrison, 7501 S. Memorial
T. de- 74122
Tuisa /4133
Bill Haynes, 1341 N. Frost
Tulsa 74106
Ol 11 604 C Oth Ct
Clarence mearion, 604 3. atti 3t.
Clarence mearion, 604 3. atti 3t.
Moore 73106
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave.
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105 J. C. Morgan, 4115 W. Edison Tulsa 74127
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105 J. C. Morgan, 4115 W. Edison Tulsa 74127 E. E. Morris, 1302 W. 13
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105 J. C. Morgan, 4115 W. Edison Tulsa 74127 E. E. Morris, 1302 W. 13 Sulphur 73086
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105 J. C. Morgan, 4115 W. Edison Tulsa 74127 E. E. Morris, 1302 W. 13 Sulphur 73086
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105 J. C. Morgan, 4115 W. Edison Tulsa 74127 E. E. Morris, 1302 W. 13 Sulphur 73086
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105 J. C. Morgan, 4115 W. Edison Tulsa 74127 E. E. Morris, 1302 W. 13 Sulphur 73086 Charles Murphy, 800 S. Creek Holdenville 7484
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105 J. C. Morgan, 4115 W. Edison Tulsa 74127 E. E. Morris, 1302 W. 13 Sulphur 73086 Charles Murphy, 800 S. Creek Holdenville 7484
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105 J. C. Morgan, 4115 W. Edison Tulsa 74127 E. E. Morris, 1302 W. 13 Sulphur 73086 Charles Murphy, 800 S. Creek Holdenville 7484 James E. Murray, 3716 N. Barr
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105 J. C. Morgan, 4115 W. Edison Tulsa 74127 E. E. Morris, 1302 W. 13 Sulphur 73086 Charles Murphy, 800 S. Creek Holdenville 7484 James E. Murray, 3716 N. Barr
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105 J. C. Morgan, 4115 W. Edison Tulsa 74127 E. E. Morris, 1302 W. 13 Sulphur 73086 Charles Murphy, 800 S. Creek Holdenville 7484 James E. Murray, 3716 N. Barr
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105 J. C. Morgan, 4115 W. Edison Tulsa 74127 E. E. Morris, 1302 W. 13 Sulphur 73086 Charles Murphy, 800 S. Creek Holdenville 7484 James E. Murray, 3716 N. Barr
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105 J. C. Morgan, 4115 W. Edison Tulsa 74127 E. E. Morris, 1302 W. 13 Sulphur 73086 Charles Murphy, 800 S. Creek Holdenville 7484 James E. Murray, 3716 N. Barr
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105 J. C. Morgan, 4115 W. Edison Tulsa 74127 E. E. Morris, 1302 W. 13 Sulphur 73086 Charles Murphy, 800 S. Creek Holdenville 7484 James E. Murray, 3716 N. Barr
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105 J. C. Morgan, 4115 W. Edison Tulsa 74127 E. E. Morris, 1302 W. 13 Sulphur 73086 Charles Murphy, 800 S. Creek Holdenville 7484 James E. Murray, 3716 N. Barr
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105 J. C. Morgan, 4115 W. Edison Tulsa 74127 E. E. Morris, 1302 W. 13 Sulphur 73086 Charles Murphy, 800 S. Creek Holdenville 7484 James E. Murray, 3716 N. Barr Oklahoma City 73122 Cletus Nichols, Star Route Calvin 74531 Odie Nunley, 1411 N. Beaver Guymon 73943 E. A. O'Donnell, 304 E. 5th St.
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105 J. C. Morgan, 4115 W. Edison Tulsa 74127 E. E. Morris, 1302 W. 13 Sulphur 73086 Charles Murphy, 800 S. Creek Holdenville 7484 James E. Murray, 3716 N. Barr Oklahoma City 73122 Cletus Nichols, Star Route Calvin 74531 Odie Nunley, 1411 N. Beaver Guymon 73943 E. A. O'Donnell, 304 E. 5th St. Holdenville 748488
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105 J. C. Morgan, 4115 W. Edison Tulsa 74127 E. E. Morris, 1302 W. 13 Sulphur 73086 Charles Murphy, 800 S. Creek Holdenville 7484 James E. Murray, 3716 N. Barr Oklahoma City 73122 Cletus Nichols, Star Route Calvin 74531 Odie Nunley, 1411 N. Beaver Guymon 73943 E. A. O'Donnell, 304 E. 5th St. Holdenville 748488
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105 J. C. Morgan, 4115 W. Edison Tulsa 74127 E. E. Morris, 1302 W. 13 Sulphur 73086 Charles Murphy, 800 S. Creek Holdenville 7484 James E. Murray, 3716 N. Barr Oklahoma City 73122 Cletus Nichols, Star Route Calvin 74531 Odie Nunley, 1411 N. Beaver Guymon 73943 E. A. O'Donnell, 304 E. 5th St. Holdenville 748488
Moore 73106 Ed Hollie, Box 6 Hoyt 74440 Gene Jackson, 434 W. 2nd Bristow 74010 Bill M. Jones, Box 6343 Moore 73160 Don Jones, 822 N. Utica Tulsa 74110 Myrl Kellett, 2603 A. Ave. Lawton 73501 Bob L. Ketchum, 1004 N. Dogwood Owasso 74055 T. M. Kirkland, P. O. Drawer K Ashford 36312 W. L. Lowe, RR3 Ardmore 73401 Orville D. McDougal, 18 Debra Oklahoma City 73105 J. C. Morgan, 4115 W. Edison Tulsa 74127 E. E. Morris, 1302 W. 13 Sulphur 73086 Charles Murphy, 800 S. Creek Holdenville 7484 James E. Murray, 3716 N. Barr Oklahoma City 73122 Cletus Nichols, Star Route Calvin 74531 Odie Nunley, 1411 N. Beaver Guymon 73943 E. A. O'Donnell, 304 E. 5th St.

Bixby 74008

Carl H. Pollard, Box 275 Bluejacket 74333 Immy C. Pursell, P. O. Box 25 Muldrow 74948 Jerry Rhoades, 309 Wewoka Drive Norman 73069 Jack Richey, Rt. 2, Box 272 Chickasha 73018 Richard D. Rust, Box 431 Barnsdall 74002 Robert Scroggins, 710 E. Independence Shawnee 74801 Leon Shepherd, Rt. 1, Box 293 Sapulpa 74066 Leo Shelton, Box 834 McAlester 74501 Dale Smith, 816 Eagle Drive Moore 73160 RueDell Smith, 9th at Pierce St. Purcell 73080 Robt. E. Spencer, 722 W. 26th Stillwater 74074 John Staggs, 1326 E. 47th Pl. N. Tulsa 74105 Harry E. Staires, 113 East Drumright St. Drumright 74030 David Sutton, 1101 E. Cammack Shawnee 74801 Bailey Thompson, R.R.1 Poteau 74953 Floyd Vulgamore, Rt. 1 Stillwater 74074 Wayne Wagner, 9183 E. Marshall Pl Tulsa 74105 John W. Walker, Rt. 1 Box 153 Bixby 74008 R. S. Webb, 301 N.W.D. St. Stigler 74462 Louis J. Wickham, 725 N. Findlay Norman 73069 Ted Wilbanks, 2401 Ridgewood Moore 73160 Frank Wiley, 4220 WE 41 Del City 73115 Milburn Wilson, 706 St. NW Ardmore 73401 Allen Wood, 1035 Spurr Seminole 74868 Homer Young, 2721 SW 33d. Oklahoma City 73119 Waldo Young, 8517 N.E. 25 Spencer 73084

### **SOUTH CAROLINA**

Wilburn Beasley Turbeville 29162 Bobby E. Bowers, 241 Old Grove Rd. Greenville 29605 Joseph L. Cagle, Rt. 2 Pamplico 29583 Norwood Gibson, 613 S. Dargan St. Florence 29501 David E. Hutchinson, 1635 Decree Ave. West Columbia 29169 Joe Holcombe, 4 Elm St. Spartanburg 29303 Michael L. Jones, Route 1 Hemingway 29554 Ronnie Jones, Rt. 1 Johnsonville 29555 Guy Owens, 1413 King Ave. Florence 29501

Billy B. Poteat, P. O. Box 447 Pamplico 29583 Paul C. Reid, P. O. Box 414 Johnsonville 29555 J. B. Rice, Jr., P. O. Box 329 Lockhard 29364 William D. Sealy, P. O. Box 441 Darlington 29532 Paul Sheehan, Box 245 Turbeville 29162 Ansel Smith, 78 Brooklyn Ave. Lancaster 29720 Bobby Glenn Smith, Rt. 1, Box 229-A Pamplico 29583 J. B. Smith, 2081/2 West Elliott St. Chester 29706 H. Lamar Smith, Rt. 1, Box 46 Scranton 29591 James D. Stepps, Rt. 3 Timmonsville 29161 Sam R. Truett, Rt. 1, Box 52

Pamplico 29583 TENNESSEE Richard Adams, 710 Siam Road Elizabethton 37643 Terry L. Boyd, 512 Achievement Dr. Nashville 37209 Francis Boyle, P. O. Box 1088 Nashville 37202 Talmadge Brown Elizabethton 37643 Billy R. Buchanan, Rt. 2 Cedar Hill 37032 Pat Burttram, 4304 Wyoming Ave. Nashville 37209 Rufus Coffey, P. O. Box 1088 Nashville 37202 Richard R. Cordell, 2204 Foster Ave. Nashville 37211 Milton Crowson, 3824 Richland Ave. Nashville 37205 David England, P. O. Box 1 Sparta 38583 Leroy Forlines, 3801 Rolland Rd. Nashville 37205 Malcolm C. Fry, P. O. Box 1088 Nashville 37202 Paul F. Hall, P. O. Box 60601 Nashville 37206 Al Hamm, 622-6 Croley Dr. Nashville 37209 Ralph Hampton, Jr., 5614 Meadowcrest Lane Nashville 37211

Nashville 37209

Ralph Hampton, Jr., 5614 Meadowcrest L
Nashville 37209

H. D. Harrison, P. O. Box 1088
Nashville 37202

Wallace Hayes, 143 Dodge Dr.
Nashville 37211

Gene Helton, Rt. 3, Old Hickory Blvd.
Nashville 37218

David F. Hicks, Rt. 3
McEwen 37101

Richard Holt, Rt. 1
Midway 37809

Larry D. Hughes, Rt. 2
Charlotte 37036

W. B. Hughes, 109 E. 17th St.
Columbia 38401

Joe T. Hurst, 317 Melvin Jones Rd.
Nashville 37217

Nashville 37217

L. C. Johnson, 164 Lelawood Cir.

Nashville 37209

Bob L. Jones, 6330 Columbia Ave. Nashville 37209 W. L. Kell, 705 Union St. Kingsport 37660 Paul J. Ketteman, 3606 W. End Ave. Nashville 37205 Tag Kilgore, Rt. 1 Loudon 37774 Hal Kisk, Box 45 Mohawk 37810 Don R. Lamb, Rt. 2 Ashland City 37015 E. B. Ledlow, P. O. Box 1088 Nashville 37202 George C. Lee, 2909 Knobdale Rd. Nashville 37214 John Lindsley, 836 Peninsula Dr. Gallatin 37066 Willard McCarroll, Rt. 2 Joelton 37080 Harry Mintz, 1145 Prince St. Erwin 37650 Howard Munsey, Rt. 2 Morristown 37814 Carl W. Nelson, P. O. Box 611 Erwin 37650 Jack Paramore, 3611 Central Ave. Nashville 37205 Thurman Pate, 6605 Cherry Dr. Knoxville 37919 Dann Patrick, 3082 Brookdale St. Memphis 38118 Clarence Phillips, 304 Colorado St. Johnson City 37601 Robert E. Picirilli, 301 Greenway Nashville 37205 Paul E. Pursell, 1348 Vultee Blvd. Nashville 37202 James E. Raper, 1241 Thomas Blvd. Elizabethton 37643 Roger C. Reeds, 501 Catalina Dr. Nashville 37217 Ken Riggs, 8050 Esterbrook Nashville 37221 Doug Roberson, Rt. 19 Hodgen Ferry Knoxville 37920 Don Robirds, P. O. Box 1088 Nashville 37202 Raiph Staten, Rt. 6 Wooddale Ch. Rd. Knoxville 37914 John Smith, Jr., 1421 Tyler St. Kingsport 37660 N. R. Smith, P. O. Box 1088 Nashville 37217 O. P. Stokes, 4119 Navaho Dr. Johnson City 37620 James F. Sturgill, Box 1088 Nashville 37202 Winston Sweeney, 701 Stuffle Hgts. Kingsport 37660 M. C. Taylor, Rt. 6, Box 171-A Church Hill 37642 Roy Thomas, Box 1088 Nashville 37202 Bert Tippett, 3606 West End Ave. Nashville 37205 B. H. Turner, 525 Sinasta Rd. Erwin 37650 Henry VanKluyve, P. O. Box 1088 Nashville 37202 Billy Van Winkle, 1203 Sulphur Springs Rd. Murfreesboro 37130 R. E. Waddell, 3600 Kings Lane Nashville 37218

Paul Weaver, 2994 Springhill Memphis 38127 Jerry W. Williams, Route 7 Clarksville, 37040 H. E. Willis, 1200 Davidson Rd. Nashville 37205 J. Reford Wilson, P. O. Box 1088 Nashville 37202 Paul Woolsey, Rt. 10

Greenville 37743

Eugene Workman, P. O. Box 1088 Nashville 37202

Edward J. Young, Rt. 3 Newport 37821

### **TEXAS**

Jack T. Bankhead, 514 S. Rusk Weatherford 76086 Owen L. Barger, 7432 Mohawk Ave. Ft. Worth 76116 H. Ray Berry, 6918 Tallahasse Dr. San Antonio 78227 Kenneth Brandon, 2209 S. Grand Sp. 505 Amarillo 79103 Floyd Brawley, 615 L. Grand Comanche 76442 J. A. Brooks, 710 Lobose

Wichita Fall 76305 R. E. Conner, 1411 Nugent St. Bowie 76230

Lionel Cooksey, 2205 W. 7th St. Odessa 79760

Tiff Covington, Rt. 2 Bellevue 76228 H. Z. Cox, 918 Highfall

Dallas 75232

M. L. Crosby, 4912 Inwood Waco 76711

Leroy Cutler, 1912 Carter Creek Bryan 77801 Sanford Davis, Rt. 1, Crestview Dr.

Victoria 77901 Bob L. DuVall, B-11 Richland Creek Rd.

Ft. Worth 76118 A. F. Ferguson, Rt. 1, Box 123 Laneville 75667

Bobby Ferguson, 7731 Schneider Houston 77016

Elvis H. Fielding, 504 E. College Comanche 76442

Raymond D. Getz, 7420 Ashville Ave. Ft. Worth 76116

Clyde Gillentine, 1330 Rutherford Dr. Mesquite 75149

Alvin F. Halbrook, 810 Gordon Bryan 77801

Troy Harp, 813 Meadow Pk Dr. Ft. Worth 76108

Everett D. Hellard, 307 N. Thompson St. Conroe 77301 Glen T. Hood, 4726 Leisure

Midland 79701 J. E. Jean, Rt. 1 Comanche 76442

Johnny Lee Jones, 2326 Morrow Ave. Waco 76711

Ernest M. Kennedy, 1314 Beck Bryan 77801

Felix Lima, 817 Tamarack McAllen 78501

Thomas L. Marberry, 1618 W. Spurgeon Ft. Worth 76115 Paul Meyer, 8002 B Forrestwood Austin 78745 Allen A. Moore, 1131 W. Owings Denison 75020 Bob Morrison, 2542 Mossglen **Dallas 75227** Jerry McArthur, 2231 Ft. Worth Hwy. Weatherford 76086 Charles Nichols, 407 Sunset Ave. Henderson 75652 Roy Norie, Jr., 4114 Alpine Wichita Falls 76302 Keith Phipps, Rt. 2 Iola 77861 Charles Reeves, 7503 Cooper Lane Austin 78745 Eugene Richards, 1406 Ursuline Ave. Bryan 77801 Herbert Richards, Box 476 Fulton 78358 Harold Teague, 501 Russell St. Henderson 75652 Bob Thornbargh, 1426 Homestead Garland 75040 Clyde H. Tucker, 1204 Jones St.

### VIRGINIA Elzo M. Bevan, 3713 Davis Ford Rd.

Henderson 75652

Lake Dallas 75065

Homer Tumbleson, Box 757

Woodridge 22191 Winford R. Floyd, 4624 Larkin St. Norfolk 23513 Fred Greene, 713 Kentucky Ave. Norton 24273 Edwin L. Hill, 1143 Virgilina Ave. Norfolk 23503 Vergel Amos Maness, 712 North Barton St. Arlington 22201 Billy Morris, 913 Burksdale Rd. Norfolk 23518 Gene Parisher, P. O. Box 9128 Hampton 23369 Don R. Pegram, 692 W. Lucas Creek Rd. Newport News 23601

### WASHINGTON

Lewis Perry, 105 North Iowa East Wenatchee 98801 Lloyd Plunkett, 14640 16th Ave. SW Seattle 98166 Milan J. Ruble, 759 Methow Wenatchee 98801

### WEST VIRGINIA

Donald H. Ellis Hanover 24839 Burt Hall, Rt. 2, Box 275-B Charleston 25314 John M. Henson, Box 131 Hurricane 25526

T. C. Morgan, 1228 - 28th St. E. Huntington 25705 Billy Samms, 905 Dupont Ave. Nitro 25143

### WYOMING

Fred Lucas, Rt. 1, Box 77 Torrington 82240

### FOREIGN COUNTRIES

Jerry and Julie Barron, 5-388 Guadalojora, Jalisco, Mexico Dan and Trula Cronk

Dan and Truia Cror India

Earnie and Willa Jean Deeds Brazil, S. A.

Walter and Marcia Ellison Uruguay, S. A.

Joe and Barbara Haas, 29, Rue Antole le braz

Rennes, France Fred and Evelyn Hersey Japan

Jim and Olena McClain Japan

Lonnie and Bernice Palmer, Jr. Ivory Coast, Africa

Paul and Amy Robinson Uruguay, S. A.

### LAY DELEGATES FROM STANDING BOARDS

B. A. Jenkins Arizona

O, B. Everson Georgia

Kenneth Cade Indiana Glenn E. Harlinger Iowa

Doyle Terry Kansas

Kimble Crossley Mississippi Kenneth Lane Oklahoma

Owen Thomas North Carolina

J. Leroy Scudder Texas

### STATE DELEGATES

### ALABAMA

Steve Johnson Mrs. A. J. Lambert Mrs. James Pickett Mrs. Jack Rollins Joe Smith

### **ARKANSAS**

Mrs. Maxine Bostic Mr. Bob Followwill Mrs. Pat Lewis Mrs. Brenda Purcell Mr. Thurston Taylor

### ARIZONA (Dist. Asso.)

Mrs. Donald Carmichael

### **CALIFORNIA**

Darwin Kelton Kenneth Reid June Rolen Donna Wade Mrs. Oscar Wright

### FLORIDA.

G. W. Cloud

### **GEORGIA**

Mrs. O. L. Fields G. N. Fowler Grace Houston Ted James Mrs. Harris Nix

### IDAHO (Dist. Asso.)

Frank Matthews Juanita Parker

### **ILLINOIS**

Eunice Malone Jodie Meade Bertie Mishler Reba H. Ritter Bruce Wall

### INDIANA

Margene Martin Donald R. Neal Mary T. Neal Imogene Patterson Opal S. Tatum

### **KANSAS**

Chuck Holdeman Glenn Ledbetter Trymon Messer

### KENTUCKY

Johnie Castle Jean Castle Dorothy Cox Betty Hawkins Marie Wiley

### MARYLAND

John Hall, Jr. Lottie Horton

### MEXICO (Dist. Asso.)

Julie Barron David Cochrane Gonzalo Sanchez

### MICHIGAN

Bobby Jones Marie Locklear Stella Mae Mullens Francis Varney

### MISSISSIPPI

Mr. T. J. Armstrong Mr. Letcher Fields Mr. E. F. Harris Mr. Charles Walden Anne Worthington

### MISSOURI

James L. Hays Helen McAllister John Smith Mrs. Brenda Evans

### NORTH CAROLINA

Gwendolyn Allen Barbara Thomas Lawrence Tart Jack S. Forlines Nina Rikard

### NORTHWEST ASSOC.

Del Barrett Margaret Halliburton Betty Plunkett

### OHIO

Joe Baldwin Albert Leonard Jim Marcum Glenn Webb

### **OKLAHOMA**

Veima Cox Margaret Dixon Ruth Morris Marie Murray Mona Richey

### SOUTH CAROLINA

Mrs. Norwood Gibson Donald McClam Mrs. Paul Sheehan Kathy McClam Mary Reid

### **TENNESSEE**

Herb Peppers Mrs. Doris Raper I. L. Stanley Mr. Ray Turnage Mr. J. B. Wolfenbarger

### TEXAS

Greeta Cooksey Charles Denman Mary Feath Bernadine Jones Francis Taylor

### VIRGINIA

Mrs. Kathryn Greene Mr. Marvin Little Mrs. Mildred Little

### WEST VIRGINIA

Earl Green Sandra Kessinger Clifford Lester

### LOCAL CHURCH DELEGATES

### AL ARAMA

Coy L. Howell - East Birmingham Church Birmingham

### **ARKANSAS**

Sue Allen - Yorktown Church Star City 71667

Dorace Bishop - Plainview Church Plainview

Bob Butler - Cavanaugh Church Darling 72931

Brooks Crossno - First Church Walnut Ridge

W. G. Henry - Atkins Church Russellville 72801

Ruby Hester - First Church Russelville 72801

Don King - First Church Searcy 72143

Eileen Moore - First Church Pocahontas 72455

Robert Partee - First Church Mountain Home

Hack Perron - First Church Ft. Smith

Betty Price - First Church Jacksonville

William B. Stewart - Oak Park Church Pine Bluff

Early White - Sutton Church Pocahontas 72455 John Williams - First Church North Little Rock 72118

### **CALIFORNIA**

CALIFORNIA

Wayne E. Fry - Memorial Church
Fresno
G. D. Skinner - Concord Church
Concord 94521

COLORADO

Mr. Del Johnson

FLORIDA

Jack Allen - First Church
Scottsmoor
Carl L. Brown - Harmony Church
Lake Butler 32054
Helen Fields - First Church
Melbourne 32935
Luther Hansley - First Church
Ocala

Tom Kemble - Mt. Zion Church
Vero Beach
Robert Deniel Odom - St. John's 6

Vero Beach

Robert Daniel Odom - St. John's Church Perrv

### GEORGIA

Ernest J. Barker - Christian Hill Church Rochelle 31079

Odell Blanton - Gethsemane Church Brunswick 31520

John A. Grant - Bellview Church Colquitt 31737

Beauchamp Houston - Macedonia Church Colquitt

Wilburn Hutcheson - Spring Grove Church Jesup 31545

Charles Lasseter Sr. - Moultrie Church Moultrie

W. S. Lewis - Midway Church Moultrie

Robert W. Lisenby - Arlington Church Arlington 31713

Mr. Alvin Day - First Church Blakely 31723

Martha Morris - Statesboro Mission Statesboro 30458

### HAWAII

Helen Sanders, Waipahu Church Waipahu

### ILLINOIS

Bertis A. Maynard - Bethel Church So. Roxana 62087 Mrs. Teho W. Parks - Arnold View Church Creal Springs

### INDIANA

Wayne Joslin - First Church Anderson

### IOWA

Melisa J. Harlinger, Riverview Church Bettendorf

### KENTUCKY

Ann Barker - Louisa Church Louisa

### MISSISSIPPI

Mr. Cliff Jones - First Church Columbus Ellie McMillan - Pearce Chapel Church Smithville

## - REGISTRATION / LOCAL DELEGATES

### MISSOURI

Peggy Adkisson - So, Fremont Church Springfield Jeannie Bowman - Marshall Church

Jeannie Bowman - Marshall Churc Independence 64050

Timothy Eaton - First Church Joplin 64801

Lee Evans - Grant Ave. Church Springfield

A. C. Kennedy - Victory Church Kansas City

Carolyn Sue Lombard - First Church O'Fallon 63366

Vernon Long - Bethel Church Festus 63028

Alice Osborn - Trinity Church

Bridgeton 63044 Carol Pinkerton - First Church

Kirksville Tommie Ann Sharry - Aurora Church Aurora

Charlotte A. Tallent - South Side Church St. Louis 63116

### NORTH CAROLINA

John P. Gay - First Church

Raleigh Mrs. Ada Johnson - Friendship Church Wilmington

Ann Johnson - Oak Grove Church
Durham

R. L. Langley - Arrington Heights Church Lexington 27292

Gaye Nobles - Belvoir Church Greenville

Peggy Outland - Pleasant Acres Church New Bern

Dorothy Phillips - Grace Church Greenville

Mr. Kenneth Ratchford - Cramerton Church Gaston Couny

Beatrice Thomas - Unity Church Four Oaks

Danny Thomas - First Church Beaufort

Mrs. Geneva Walker - Maranatha Church Greenville 27834

Stanley Wall, Jr. - Ahoskie Church Ahoskie

### OHIO

Howard Brewer - Community Chapel Church Toledo

Freda Hayes - First Church Columbus

Flora M. Jeffrey - Vincent Church Elyria 44035

Robert E. Webb - West Jefferson Church West Jefferson 43162

### OKLAHOMA

Don A. Allen - Bethany Church Bixby 74008

Mary Brazeal - Allen Church Sapulpa 74066

Mildred Lee Burden - Fifth St. Church Okemah

Clo Cariker - West Tulsa Church Tulsa 74107

Jim Cosby - Southern Oaks Church Oklahoma City

Mrs. Lela Crow - First Church Tulsa

W. A. DeHart - First Church Wewoka 74884

Joyce Farmer - First Church Moore 73160

Mary Ann Gallant - First Church Healdton

Nelda Gwartney - Locust Grove Church Locust Grove 74352

Reatha Haas - Skiatook Church Collinsville

Georgia Hurst - Pleasant Hill Church Oklahoma City

C. A. Inbody - Southeast Church Tulsa 74112

Stanley Kent Konopinski - Sunnylane Church Oklahoma City 73135

Lila Faye Morgan - Lawnwood Church Tulsa

Ray Martin - Northwest Church Oklahoma City

Danny McDougal - Richman Ave. Church Allen

James W. Miller - Capitol Hill Church Oklahoma City 73139

Gerald W. Mills - Silver City Church Silver City Velma Moore - First Church

Pryor 74361 Effie Morris - Trinity Temple Church

Tulsa 74115

Mrs. Hilda Nichols - North Church

Calvin Sue Perry - Bixby Church

Bixby 74008 Wilma Sheppard - Blue Bell Church Sapulpa

Clara Staggs - Lewis Ave. Church

Kathleen Sutton - Northeast Church Shawnee

L. C. Webber - Purcell Church Purcell

Alfred V. Wilkins - First Church Shawnee Dean Willis - Airport Church

Tulsa Zora Wilson - First Church

Ada 74820 Ivan K. Van Winkle - First Church Norman

Jo Ann Young - Spencer Road Church Spencer 73084

### SOUTH CAROLINA

Mrs. Betty White - First Church Charleston

### TENNESSEE

Mrs, Carolyn Adams - East Side Church Elizabethton 37643

Harold Baker - East Nashville Church Nashville 37206

Finis Bowman - Donelson Church

Nashville 37214

Mrs. L. O. Burroughs - Cofer's Chapel Church Nashville 37209

A. G. Caldwell - West End Church Springfield

Jewell Dunbar - First Church

Erwin

Billy W. Head - Hendersonville Church Hendersonville 37075

Margrette Hughes - Rock Springs Church Charlotte 37036

Brad Patrick - Harris Memorial Church Greenville

Elsie Staten - Wooddale Church

Knoxville 37914

Zula Wolfenbarger - Forest Grove Church Knoxville 37917

### **TEXAS**

Leota H. Barger - Friendship Church

Fort Worth

Mrs. Asa H. Berry - Faith Church San Antonio 78227

Libbie Brewer - Concord Church Dallas

Lela Clary - Cross Church Iola 77861

Vernon Copeland - Calvary Church Houston

Mrs. Frances Ellis - Fellowship Church Bryan 77801

Dick Gillespie - Rock of Ages Church Ft. Worth

Ernest Gregg - First Church Bryan, Texas 77801

Peggy Humbles - North Amarillo Church Amarillo

Amarillo

Mrs. Grace Jackson - First Church

Wichita Falls

James L. Jenkins - Grace Church

Ft Worth

Ft. Worth

Ft. Worth
Wivian Moore - First Church
Denison

Verlan Pegues - First Church

Houston 77016

Houston 77016
J. T. Reeder - Trinity Church
Fort Worth
Lucille Reeder - Pleasant Mound Church Bellevue 76228

Bellevue 76228

Margaret Richards - Christ Church
Corpus Christi

Arnold Schultz - Bright Light Church
Bryan 77801

Mrs. L. P. Stom - First Church
Weatherford
Ray T. Trant - Evergreen Church
lola 77861

### WYOMING

1

### **MONDAY EVENING, JULY 10, 1972**

The 36th annual convention of the National Association of Free Will Baptists met in the Tarrant County Convention Center, Fort Worth, Texas, July 10-13, 1972. The theme of the convention was "Soul Winning: The Church in Action."

The congregation was called to worship by Rev. Bob Shockey, presiding officer of the service. He read 2 Corinthians 5:14-15, and led the congregation in prayer. Mr. Shockey then introduced the musicians for the convention: Miss Debbie Dudley, organist; Mrs. Maude Coffey, pianist; and Mr. Blaine Hughes, music director. Mr. Hughes led the congregation in singing the theme song of the convention, "Set My Soul Afire," "He Keeps Me Singing," and "Amazing Grace." The Gleaners Trio from Free Will Baptist Bible College sang a medley of songs.

Rev. Waldo Young, clerk of the convetion, called the association into official session and introduced the moderator, Dr. J. D. O'Donnell, pastor of the Grant Avenue Free Will Baptist Church, Springfield, Missouri. The moderator introduced the other officers of the convention: Rev. Jerry Dudley, assistant clerk, and Rev. Bobby Jackson, assistant moderator.

The moderator presented a plaque to Dr. Robert Picirilli, immediate past moderator, for six years of faithful service to the convention.

The report of the Committee on Committees was read, appointing two committees. The Resolution Committee members were: Edward Johns, California; Paul Thompson, Ohio; Sam Truett, South Carolina; Roger Harwell, Missouri; and Ronald Creech, North Carolina. The Nominating Committee members were James Murray, Oklahoma; Wade Jernigan, California; Richard Presnell, Ohio; Van Dale Hudson, Mississippi; and Robert Picirilli, Tennessee.

Mrs. Clara Picirilli, President of the WNAC, was introduced to read the appointment of committees of the Woman's National Auxiliary Convention.

The moderator introduced Rev. Allen Moore, moderator of the Texas State Association and pastor of the Dennison, Texas, church, who extended a warm welcome from the Texas State Association.

Mr. Blaine Hughes led in a get-acquainted time, recognizing representatives from across the nation and several countries around the world. The congregation sang "Heavenly Sunshine" as the people shook hands one with the other.

The convention offering was received, following prayer led by Rev. John Edwards, Tucson, Arizona. Bob Shockey led in a special prayer for the sick for whom special requests had been made.

The Ministers Quartet from Oklahoma sang "The King is Coming."

Rev. Tom Malone, pastor from Florence, Alabama, was introduced as the speaker for the service. He read 2 Corinthians 5:10-11, and preached on the subject, "Motivation for Soul Winning." Following the sermon an invitation hymn was sung and a prayer of consecration was given for those responding.

Rev. Rufus Coffey, Executive Secretary, made some announcements. The service was closed with prayer led by Rev. Claudie Hames.

20

### **TUESDAY EVENING, JULY 11, 1972**

The Tuesday evening service was called to order by Rev. Ben Scott, presiding officer. He read Psalm 126:5-6, and led in prayer.

Mr. Blaine Hughes led the congregation in singing the theme song, "Set My Soul Afire," and "The Old Time Religion."

Mr. Samuel Johnson introduced the junior age Adventurers attending the convention. They sang "Pioneering for Christ," led by Mrs. Malcolm Fry. Mr. Johnson presented awards to the winners in the competitive activities in the National Youth Conference.

A special award was given to Mr. Samuel Johnson by Eugene Hales, in recognition of ten years of dedicated and faithful work as Director of the CTS Department.

The choir from the Southern Oaks Church, Oklahoma City, was introduced to bring special music. This choir sang "Hallelujah, Christ is Risen," and "Reach Out and Touch the Lord," directed by Ted Wilbanks.

The congregation sang, "I am Resolved," after which the convention offering was received. Jerry Dudley led in the offeratory prayer.

Mr. Blaine Hughes sang "To Be Used Of God."

Rev. Lonnie Graves, pastor of the Fellowship Church, Durham, N. C., was introduced to deliver the message. He read Matthew 20:20-21, and spoke on the theme, "You Can Be a Soul Winner."

Following announcements, the closing prayer was given by Rev. Z. D. Harris.

### WEDNESDAY MORNING, JULY 12, 1972

The opening hymn of the Wednesday morning session was "How Firm a Foundation." The King's Messengers Quartet sang "His Grace is Sufficient."

The moderator read from Habakkuk 1:1-5, for the basis of his devotional thoughts and moderators message. He then led in the opening prayer.

The report of the credentials committee was read. A motion carried to accept the report and seat the delegates.

A partial report of the nominating committee was read. A motion carried to receive the report and elect the board and commission members at the close of each departmental report.

The report of the board of Home Missions and Church Extension was given by Rev. Homer Willis, director, followed by a slide presentation given by Rev. Roy Thomas. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget.

Rev. Jim McAllister was elected as the seven year member of this board.

The report of the Church Training Service Department was given by Mr. Samuel Johnson. Malcolm Fry was introduced as the director-elect. He will assume the responsibilities of director September 1, 1972. A motion carried that the report be received and the budget adopted.

Rev. Lynn Wood was elected as the seven year member of this board.

Dr. L. C. Johnson gave the report of Free Will Baptist Bible College. A

motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget.

Owen Thomas, William Mishler, and Ben Scott were elected to six year terms on the College Board of Trustees.

Rev. J. Reford Wilson gave the report of the Foreign Missions Department. One missionary from each of the fields of Japan, India, Brazil, Uruguay, Africa, and France, brought greetings to the body from their respective field of work.

Rev. Raymond Riggs was elected as the seven year member of this board.

The moderator gave special recognition to Mr. G. W. Cloud, a layman from Florida, for 30 years of attendance at the National convention.

Rev. Francis Boyle gave the report of the Executive Church Bonds. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget.

Rev. Herman Hersey gave the report of the Board of Retirement and Insurance. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget.

Rev. Ronald Niebruegge was elected as the seven year member of this board.

The moderator declared a recess until 1:45 P.M.

### WEDNESDAY AFTERNOON

The afternoon session of the convention was called to order by the moderator. Blaine Hughes led the congregation in singing, "My Savior's Love."

Rev. Carl Young read from John 15, for the devotion and led in prayer.

Rev. Roger Reeds, director, gave the report of the Sunday School Department. Rev. Harrold Harrison presented the award of the outstanding Sunday School Superintendent to Mr. Ronnie Brown, Dothan, Alabama. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget.

Rev. George Lee was elected as the seven year member of the Sunday School Board, and Mr. Bob Followwill was elected to the two year vacancy on this board.

Mr. Kenneth Lane gave the report of the Layman's Board. A motion carried to receive this report and adopt the budget. Mr. Trymon Messer was elected as the seven year member of this board.

Rev. Leroy Forlines gave the report of the Theological Liberalism Commission. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget.

Rev. Leroy Forlines was elected as the 5 year member of this commission.

Rev. Rufus Coffey gave the report of the Executive Department. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget.

Mr. Jack Nicholson was elected as the seven year member of the National Offices Trustees.

Rev. Z. D. Harris, black pastor of the Oak Grove Free Will Baptist Church, Durham, N. C., and moderator of his local association of the United American Free Will Baptists, brought greetings from his group to the convention.

The clerk read the report of the General Board. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt it item by item.

Item 1, dealing with the board reports, required no action since the reports had already been adopted.

A motion carried to lay item 2 on the table until the next day.

A motion carried to lay item 3 on the table until the next day.

A motion carried to adopt item 4.

A motion was made and seconded to adopt item 5. A motion carried to amend by deleting "and subsidiary organizations within the denomination can hold membership in its affiliates," from paragraph 3, and add "and its subsidiaries" following the words "National Association of Free Will Baptists" to paragraph 4. The previous question was moved and carried.

A motion was made and seconded to suspend the rule to allow debate on the original motion as amended. The motion to suspend the rule lost.

A motion carried to appeal the decision of the chair to apply the "previous question" motion to the main motion, which allowed debate on the main motion as amended.

Item 5 was adopted as amended.

Item 6, recommending Dayton, Ohio as the convention site for 1975, was adopted.

A motion carried to recess the business until Thursday morning, Harvey Brown dismissed the group with prayer.

### WEDNESDAY EVENING SERVICE

The Wednesday evening service was called to order by Rev. Winford Floyd, the presiding officer. He read Matthew 9:35-38, and led the opening prayer.

Mr. Blaine Hughes led the congregation in singing several songs.

The convention offering was received following prayer led by Rev. Homer Willis.

Rev. Don Robirds introduced the foreign missionaries who were present for the service. Rev. E. B. Ledlow introduced the home missionaries present.

Rev. J. Reford Wilson presented a plaque to Mrs. Gladys Sloan, recognizing her 22 years of dedicated service in the foreign missions office.

Mr. Blaine Hughes led the congregation in singing "To the Regions Bevond."

Mr. Joe Creech sang "Submission."

Missionary Walter Ellison was introduced, and he brought the evening message on "Reaching the Multitudes." Rev. Joe Ange gave the invitation to which several responded dedicating their lives to God's service.

Rev. Roy Thomas received the missionary offering and led in the offertory prayer. The offering was \$3,587.06.

After the announcements, Rev. Winford Floyd led in the closing prayer.

### THURSDAY MORNING, JULY 13, 1972

prayer. The offering After the annual After the After the annual After the Af The Thursday morning session opened with congregational singing directed

Rev. Clarence Newman led in the devotions and prayer, He read Acts 1:8

on which he based his devotional thoughts.

Mrs. Cleo Pursell gave the report of the Woman's National Auxiliary Convention. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget.

Rev. Ronald Creech gave the report of the Historical Commission. A motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget.

A partial report of the nominating committee was given, pertaining to the general board members. The following were elected to serve on the General Board for two year terms from their respective states:

T. B. Gartman, New Mexico; Ronald Creech, North Carolina; Mack Owens, Northeast Association; Milan Ruble, Northwest Association; Clarence Newman, Ohio; Robert Duncan, Oklahoma; Norwood Gibson, South Carolina; Clarence Phillips, Tennessee; Bobby Ferguson, Texas; Fred Greene, Virginia, Carl Valance, West Virginia; Trymon Messer, Kansas; Jerry Barron, Mexico; and Tom Malone from Alabama for one year term replacing Hughes Ellis.

Rev. Ronald Creech was elected to a 3 year term on the Historical Commission.

Mr. Samuel Johnson gave the report of the youth conference. A motion carried to receive the report.

Due to his being elected to the General Board, Trymon Messer resigned from the Laymen's Board and Kenneth Cade was elected to replace him.

Due to his being elected to the board of Home Missions and Church Extension, Rev. Jim McAllister resigned from the General Board. Rev. Dale Skiles was elected to represent Missouri.

The report of the Resolution Committee was read by the clerk. A motion carried to receive the report and consider it item by item.

A motion carried to amend item 1, by substituting "alcoholic beverages" in place of "alcoholism" in section one. The item carried as amended.

Item 2 carried.

Item 3 was considered. A motion carried to substitute the following resolution in place of number 3: "Be it resolved that this body affirm that the so-called charismatic doctrine of speaking in tongues or languages as essential evidence of a special experience with the Holy Spirit required for all Christians before they can be considered as having the fullness of the Holy Spirit, is contrary to the doctrine of the Bible and Original Free Will Baptists."

Item 4 carried.

Item 5 was considered. A motion was made and seconded to amend item 5, by replacing the last half of section one with this statement: "support for any efforts to reinstate capital punishment as a deterent to and punishment for crime," and inserting the following in section two, "the chairman of the Democratic Party, and the nominees of the political parties."

The previous question was moved. The item carried as amended. Item 6, was adopted.

A motion was made and seconded that a committee be appointed as a memorial committee to work through the year and report on all ministers and missionaries deceased, and that a brief biography of their work be inserted in the minutes. A motion carried to table the motion.

A motion carried that the action terminating the relationship of the lpha

Foreign Missions and Home Missions Departments with the Evangelical Foreign Missions Association and the Chaplains Commission of NAE take effect one year from now in order to allow time to find other agencies to render the services which these departments now receive from these N.A.E. affiliates.

A recess was declared by the moderator.

The morning worship service opened with the congregation singing "Set My Soul Afire." Rev. Andy Lay, presiding officer, read from 1 Corinthians 9:19-22. Other congregational songs were led by Blaine Hughes.

It was reported that the convention expenses had been met, thus the morning offering would be designated to purchase furniture for the conference room in the National Office Building. Rev. Rufus Coffey led in the offertory prayer.

Rev. Bill Gardner sang "I'm Going Higher Some Day."

Rev. Homer Young was introduced to preach the morning message. He spoke on the theme, "By All Means Save Some," and read 1 Corinthians 9:19-22, as a text.

Following the morning worship service, business resumed. Rev. Rufus Coffey gave the report of the budget committee. A motion carried to adopt the report.

A motion carried to take item 2 of the General Board report from the table. The item was adopted.

A motion carried to take item 3 of the General Board from the table. The item was adopted.

The moderator declared the election of Mr. Kenneth Cade to the Laymen's Board to be in error since he was already on the General Board. Mr. Lloyd Olson from Hawaii was elected to this vacancy.

The final report of the Nominating Committee was given, and the election of officers was held.

Rev. Lloyd Plunkett was elected as assistant clerk.

Rev. Waldo Young was elected as clerk.

Rev. Bobby Jackson was elected as assistant moderator.

Dr. J. D. O'Donnell was elected as moderator.

A motion carried to adjourn the assembly. Rev. E. E. Morris led in the closing prayer.

### REPORTS

### NATIONAL OFFICES

### HOME MISSIONS AND CHURCH EXTENSION REPORT

The first board was elected in 1938 at Nashville, Tennessee. Since that time there have been 38 people serve on the board. Three of this number served only as proxies, so there have been 35 regular members. North Carolina had eight members, Tennessee 5, Missouri 4, Oklahoma 4, Kentucky 3, Texas 3, Virginia 2, and Ohio 2 and the following states one—California, Michigan, Arkansas, Colorado, Georgia, Alabama and Mississippi. Fifteen states have had representatives on the board. The number of members was increased from five to seven in 1963.

Twenty-six of the people who have served on the board, including the present members, are now living. There has been one layman and two women to serve on the board.

Reverend M. L. Hollis was the first chairman and served for five years. Mrs. Lizzie McAdams was the first missionary and served in 1941. The next missionary was John Postlewaite who began work in the Northwest in 1953. This was the year the office was opened in Nashville with Reverend D. C. Dodd as Promotional Secretary. Reverend Homer E. Willis was elected General Director-Treasurer in 1956.

The national office was moved into the new office building in 1965.

Beginning with 1958 the work began expanding into Alaska, Hawaii, Mexico, then the Northeast and Canada. More recently missionaries have build excellent works in the Virgin Islands and Puerto Rico. While the work was expanding in the other nations and territories of the United States, missionaries were also being sent to a number of states in the continental United States—Washington, Oregon, Colorado, District of Columbia, New Hampshire, Maine, New Jersey, Nebraska, Arizona, Idaho, Iowa, Kansas, Kentucky, Minnesota, New Mexico, Vermont. Working with state mission boards the home missionaries have ministered in Alabama, California, Florida, Michigan, Mississippi, Missouri, Ohio, Oklahoma, Tennessee, Texas and Virginia.

Hundreds of churches have been organized directly or indirectly through the efforts of home mission and church extension missionaries. More than 200 workers have served with the board.

The lastest appointment has been for a work in Montana. The missionaries will arrive there in the fall. This will be 29 states the National Board has worked in plus Canada, Mexico and the territories of Puerto Rico and the Virgin Islands. This is covering a period of nineteen years.

In 1971 the board supported work as follows:

Six missionaries and nine national pastors in Mexico.

Also, the Bible Institute at Monterrey

Four missionaries in the Virgin Islands

Two missionaries in Puerto Rico

Regular support for 58 workers

Designated support for 24 others

In more recent years the National Association asked the board to assume the Department of Evangelism and the Chaplains Division. Both of these ministries are growing with three evangelism conferences scheduled for this year, and we have two active chaplains.

26 - REPORTS / HOME MISSIONS

In addition there is a loan division and literature ministry. A new manual is now being prepared and material on the bus ministry.

The board operates with one secretary and one bookkeeper. The Field Missionary and Deputational Missionary assist the General Director in all the work for the board.

A look at the men who now serve on the Home Mission Board and direct this department might be helpful. Of the seven members, six are college graduates, five attended at Nashville. The average age is 43 and the average years in the ministry is 20. They have served an average of five years on the board. Two are natives of North Carolina, one of Georgia, one of Texas, one of Illinois, one of Alabama and one of Kentucky.

Our missionary family now works in different states of Mexico, Hawaii, Tennessee, Puerto Rico, California, Texas, Minnesota, Vermont, the Virgin Islands, Kansas, Alabama, Mississippi, Oklahoma, Idaho and Virginia.

Designated support also goes regularly to workers in a number of other places.

Homer Willis, Director

### FINANCIAL STATEMENT

### **OPERATING FUND - BALANCE SHEET**

		December 31		
	ASSETS	1971	1970	
Cash		60,770.13	46.958.21	
Church loans		1,500.00	500.00	
Due from Retirement Fund		<b>6</b> 86.48	482.27	
Matured bond interest coupons		599.75		
Corporate stock (market)		87.50	59.50	
Church bonds	<i></i>	12 <i>.</i> 100.00	9,600.00	
Accrued interest receivable		<u> 205.85</u>	93.50	
Total Assets		<u>75,949.71</u>	<u>57,693.48</u>	
	AND FUND BA	LANCE		
Liabilities				
Accounts payable		942.95	260.45	
Payroll taxes			224.42	
Total Liabilities		942.95	484.87	
Fund Balance		20 042 00		
Designated for mission use		28,843.22	23,077.94	
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance		75.040.71	34,130.67	
Total Elabilities and Fund Balance		<u>75,949.71</u>	<u>57,693.48</u>	
5				
FOLIPMENT ELL	ND - BALA	MCE CHEET		
EQUIPMENT FUND — BALANCE SHEET				
Decer	nber 31, 197	'1		
	•			
•	ASSETS			
Office furniture and equipment		9,083.27		
Automobile		<u>3,609.42</u>		
Total Assets	<i></i>		12,692.69	
Fund Balance			12,692.69	

### INCOME AND OPERATING FUND BALANCE Year ended December 31, 1971

Income	
Expenditures Missionary maintenance	
Board meeting expense 1,809.74 Other	3
Other	! <u>.</u> <u>212,162.45</u>
Fund Balance, January 1, 1971  Designated for mission use	57,208.61
General use	75,006.76

### INCOME BY YEARS

1967 — 145,261.87 1968 — 157,796.70 1969 — 180,075.25 1970 — 183,343.17 1971 — 229,960.60

### 28 - REPORTS / HOME MISSIONS

### QUOTA RECEIPTS Year ended December 31, 1971

			Receipts
	Amount of	Amount of	Over
	Quota	Receipts	(Under)
Alabama		17,935.09	Quota
Alaska		902.06	7,935.09
Arizona		2.254.07	802.06 1,254.07
Arkansas		5.787.52	( 4,212,48)
California		15.621.23	5.621.23
Canada		40.00	( 460.00)
Colorado		630.61	( 519.39)
Florida		4,883.11	(5,116.89)
Georgia		5,703.66	( 2,296.34)
Hawaii	500.00	503.25	3.25
Idaho	500.00	729.57	229.57
Illinois		4,683.35	683.35
Indiana	3,000.00	1,611.69	(1,388.31)
lowa		1,433.88	1,183.88
Kansas	1,500.00	4,327.63	2,827.63
Kentucky		8,973.72	1,973.72
Louisiana		5.00	( 495.00)
Maine		716.00	( 1,284.00)
Maryland		341.35	( 1,658.65)
Mexico		570.20	( 429.80)
Michigan		6,591.76	( 908.24)
Minnesota		448.48	348.48
Mississippi		6,806.75	1,306.75
Missouri		14,479.85 372.30	( 2,520.15)
New Jersey		10.00	( 127.70) ( 340.00)
New Mexico		347.48	( 152.52)
North Carolina		17.208.31	(4,791,69)
Ohio	,	9.012.88	2,512.88
Oklahoma		33,100,92	8,100.92
Oregon	,	1,200.00	1,100.00
Puerto Rico		145.00	45.00
South Carolina		5,925.72	1,425,72
Tennessee	.29,000.00	36,621,78	7,621.78
Texas	4,500.00	6,285.63	1,785.63
Vermont	100.00	45.00	( 55.00)
Virginia	5,500.00	3,678.77	(1.821.23)
Virgin Islands		125.00	25.00
Washington		139.87	( 2,360.13)
West Virginia		3,424.94	924.94
Wisconsin		5.00	( 95.00)
Other		80.30	(3,419.70)
Totals	210,340.00	<u>223,708.73</u>	<u> 13,258.73</u>

### FAITH BUDGET - 1973

	19 <b>7</b> 2 <u>Budget</u>	<u>1973</u>
Missionary Maintenance		
Missionaries maintenance	. \$118,000.00	\$153,500.00
Short-term workers	2,000.00	5,000.00
Itinerary	2,000.00	2,000.00
Printing and supplies	4,000.00	4,000.00
Newsletters	500.00	1,500.00
Designated funds	20,000.00	25,000.00
Retirement fund	2,200.00	3,200.00
Medical expenses	1,000.00	2,000.00
Church loans	4,000.00	4,000.00
Chaplain ministry	300.00	1,000.00
Evangelism ministry	1,400.00	1,500.00
Miscellaneous missionary		3,400.00
Total missionary maintenance	. \$157,400.00	\$206,100.00
A 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		
Administrative Expense	A 05 000 00	A 05 000 00
Salaries and housing		\$ 25,200.00
Utilities		700.00
Office rent		4,000.00
Department car expenses	1,500.00	2,500.00
(Including exchange)	000.00	4 000 00
Retirement fund		1,000.00
Printing and postage	14,000.00	14,500.00
Telephone		1,700.00
Taxes and accounting		1,000.00
Insurance		1,600.00
Equipment and supplies		1,900.00
Board members expense		2,000.00
Field ministry		13,000.00
Miscellaneous		800.00
Total administrative expense	. \$ 67,600.00	\$ 69,900.00
TOTAL PROPOSED BUDGET	. \$225,000.00	\$276,000.00

### 30 - REPORTS / HOME MISSIONS

### PROPOSED QUOTAS AND INCOME 1973

		Proposed
	1972 Quota	1973 Quota
Alabama	\$10,000.00	\$20,000.00
Alaska	200.00	1,100.00
Arizona	2,000.00	3,000.00
Arkansas		10,000.00
California		15,000.00
Canada		500.00
Colorado		1,150.00
Florida		10,000.00
Georgia		8,000.00
Hawaii		500.00
Idaho		500.00
Illinois		6,000.00
Indiana		3,000.00
lowa		250.00
Kansas		4,500.00
Kentucky		9,000.00
Louisiana		500.00
Maine		2,000.00
Maryland		2,000.00
Mexico		1,000,00
Michigan		9,500.00
Minnesota		600.00
Mississippi		10,000.00
Missouri		17,000.00
New Hampshire		500.00
New Jersey		
New Mexico		500.00
New York		450.00
North Carolina		22,000.00
Ohio		9,500.00
Oklahoma		35,000.00
Oregon		1,100.00
Puerto Rico		100.00
South Carolina		6,500.00
Tennessee		35,000.00
Texas		6,500.00
Vermont		100.00
Virginia		5,500.00
Virgin Islands		100.00
Washington		500.00
West Virginia		3,500.00
Wisconsin		100.00
Other States		1,800.00
Miscellaneous Receipts		12,150.00
	\$225,000.00	\$276,000.00

# 31 - REPORTS / CHURCH TRAINING SERV

### CHURCH TRAINING SERVICE REPORT

Several areas of responsibility are handled by the National Church Training Service Department. One of the major areas is the coordination and promotion of youth activities. Another major area is the provision of a training program for the local church for children, youths, and adults. The promotion of camping and the publication of camp literature is yet another area of the CTS ministry. A fourth major area is the provision of leadership training seminars and workshops conducted by members of the National CTS Department.

It should be recognized that while youtn activities are a big part of the CTS program, the CTS Department provides training opportunities for all ages. The Church Training Service Board took special note of its total ministry in its most recent meeting. If you have a Christian education need in your church, it is highly possible that your National CTS Department can help you.

At the present time, there are approximately 800 Free Will Baptist churches that regularly order literature from the National CTS Department. Other churches provide some type of training program and use a variety of materials other than the quarterly publications provided for CTS. Each church is strongly urged to have the training program that best meets its needs. The National CTS Department stands ready to assist in any way possible. In addition to quarterly program publications, the CTS Department is in the process of developing a leadership training series that will be available on a continuous basis for use according to the need of the individual church.

Many services are provided through the National CTS Department, particularly in the youth area, which are dependent upon your support. The volume of literature sales is inadequate to meet the financial needs of the department. It is requested that each local CTS contribute \$5 per month to the National CTS Department. It is further suggested that a CTS consider giving an amount equal to 10% of its membership. For example, a CTS of 75 members might contribute \$7.50 per month.

Just a personal word in concluding this report which completes ten years of service. I have resigned as your National CTS Director in order to give my full attention to Christian camping. The desire has intensified during the past year and the Lord has given me an abiding conviction that this should be my next step in Christian service. I hope to continue service to Free Will Baptists in this specialized area of Christian education.

It is with a great deal of joy that I can announce to you that the National CTS Board has chosen Reverend Malcolm Fry as the next National CTS Director. It has been our  $oldsymbol{\mu}$ privilege to work together during the past year, and it has been a great time of sharing. One of the outstanding things this year has been the observable evidence of the Holy Spirit's leadership in preparing us for a period of transition.

I am grateful to the Lord and to Free Will Baptists for the ten years that I have had the opportunity to learn, to grow, and to serve with the Church Training Service.

Samuel E. Johnson, General Director

## 32 - REPORTS / CHURCH TRAINING SERVICE

### FINANCIAL STATEMENT

### **Balance Sheet** December 31, 1971

^	_	^	_	_	_
Δ	s		-	- 1	х.

ASSETS
Current Assets:Cash on hand and in banks (savings \$460.79)\$ 1,013.67Accounts receivable.15,426.77Inventory - merchandise for sale.11,041.70Unamortized finance charges522.50TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS\$28,004.64
Other Assets: Deposits
Fixed Assets:         Cost Office equipment         Accum. Depr. \$5,033.27         Book Value \$5,361.18           Other equipment
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities         \$ 3,425.25           Notes payable - bank - Note 1         \$ 342.93           Installment contract payable         342.93           Accounts payable         8,896.37           Accrued and withheld payroll taxes         720.41           State sales tax payable        56.26           TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES         \$13,441.22
Fund Balance:  Balance January 1, 1971\$15,814.64  Add: Net income for the year5,756.57
See Notes to Financial Statement,
Commence of Footone Contribution to

### Summary of Factors Contributing to Increase in Net Current Assets

ADDITIONS
From statement of income:  Net income for the year
not affect net current assets       _1,793.71       \$7,550.28         Decrease in other assets       _511.60         Decrease in fixed assets       _730.30         \$8,792.18
DEDUCTIONS           Decrease in long-term debt

### Notes to Financial Statements

- Note 1—A note in an original amount of \$11,210.04, is payable to the First American National Bank, Nashville, Tennessee. Monthly payments of \$311.39 include principal and interest. At December 31, 1971 the balance of this note was \$3,425.25.
- Note 2—A Victor Calculator, with a carrying value of \$426.66, is collateral to a lease-purchase contract payable. Payments of \$62.08 are made monthly. It is anticipated that the equipment will be retained at the conclusion of the lease period.

### Statement of Income Year Ended December 31, 1971

Income:

Literature and supplies \$103,6° Postage and handling 9,20° Gifts 5,3° Cooperative plan of support 7,3° Miscellaneous \$125,8°	08.02 24.38 76.33 52.02
Cost of Sales:       Inventory January 1, 1971       \$ 9,995.62         Purchases       .45,939.81         Mailing supplies and postage       .4,785.37         \$60,720.80         Inventory December 31, 1971       .11,041.70         GROSS PROFIT       \$76.15         Operating Expenses:       .68,96         \$ 7,32	96.24 66.93
Other Deductions:       \$ 34.12         Loss on sale of assets       \$ 54.09         Interest expense       .1,484.53       1,57         \$ 5,75     Operating Expenses	S.
Equipment rental       \$ 1,21         Accounting       58         Board meetings & conferences       2,08         Insurance, employee insurance & retirement       1,93         Research and promotion       1,06         Office supplies & expense       1,20         Rent       6,20         Salaries       38,24         Payroll taxes       1,94         Housing allowance       2,80         Telephone       1,12         Travel       4,24         Miscellaneous       85         Youth camp activities       85         Moving expenses       1,69         National Association and Youth Conference       1,03         Depreciation       1,79         \$68,86	22.50 PR L S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S

### **BUDGET FOR 1973**

Estimated Income       118,000         Sales of Literature and Supplies       10,000         Postage and Handling       10,000         Co-operative Plan       10,000         Direct Gifts       _7,000         Total Estimated Income       \$145,000
Estimated Expenditures Printing Costs
Debt Retirement .5,000 Equipment .2,500 Accounting by Auditor .750 Board Meetings .1,500
Employee and General Insurance2,500Office and Mailing Supplies2,500Postage6,000Rent7,500
Payroll Taxes       2,000         Housing       3,000         Telephone       2,000
Travel and Promotion
Miscellaneous

### FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE REPORT

Nineteen hundred and seventy-one and seventy-two was an exciting year for Free Will Baptist Bible College. Some highlights of the year were: (1) largest enrollment, (2) largest gift income, (3) occupying the new women's dormitory and cafeteria, (4) a revival which resulted in many changed lives and calls into the ministry, (5) an "A" rating given by the University of Tennessee to Free Will Baptist Bible College. This means that full four years of credit earned at Free Will Baptist Bible College may be transferred to the university without validation. This also opens the doors to most all colleges and universities for like transfer credits. (6) Beginning of two new buildings: physical education building and addition to library. (7) Purchasing of two additional pieces of property on Richland Avenue for future growth.

The seven things mentioned above tell in a nutshell the vitality and continued growth of Free Will Baptist Bible College.

We continue to see a growing interest in the type education Free Will Baptist Bible College offers. High standards of Christian conduct and high academic standards are no hinderances to the continued growth of Free Will Baptist Bible College. Rather, behavioral discipline and academic excellence are necessary if Free Will Baptist Bible College is to have

a Christian image. It would be fatal to all the college has stood for if standards were lowered in order to accommodate the low moral standards of modern society. It is the conviction of Free Will Baptist Bible College that this is a time to raise Christian standards rather than lower them.

The prospects for the coming year are challenging. Plans are being made to erect another women's dormitory. The dormitory built last year will only house slightly more than half the women students this year. This growth could not have been anticipated eighteen months ago.

Additions to the curriculum are being made in the area of education. The surging demand for teachers in Christian schools at the elementary and secondary levels is opening up a new demand for Christian teachers with a Bible College background. Christian school teachers for Christian schools is one of the greatest missionary opportunities open to us.

Free Will Baptist Bible College faces its greatest opportunities. The operation of the institution so as to have the full measure of God's blessings upon it, and the response of our churches and people to its needs will determine how we meet the challenge before us. The pastors of our denomination are to be thanked for the growing support they are giving Free Will Baptist Bible College.

Dr. L. C. Johnson, President

### REGISTRAR'S STATISTICAL REPORT, 1971-72

Total enrollment for year			534
Regular (day-class) enroll	ment		494
New students			213
Returning students			281
Men students			288
Women students			, 206
Ministerial students .			148
Missionary students .			54
Bachelor of Arts degrees a	awarded		s4 <b>(5</b>
Bachelor of Science degre	es awarded		2 щ
Christian Workers Bible d	iplomas awarded		8 =
Business Certificates awar	ded		6 <b>5</b>
			Ö
Students came from 28 st	ates and 1 foreign country a	as follows:	ш
Alabama 25	Kentucky12	Oregon 1	BIBLE
Arkansas 14	Maryland 2	Pennsylvania 3	π̈
California 7	Michigan 30	South Carolina 41	
Colorado3	Mississippi 10	Tennessee 52	BAPTIST
Florida 21	Missouri 22	Texas 5	2
France 2	Montana 1	Virginia18	7
Georgia	New Hampshire 2	Washington 7	₹
Hawaii 1	North Carolina 88	West Virginia 12	Ω
Illinois 36	Ohio24	Wyoming1	
Indiana	Oklahoma 8		WILL
***************************************			3
LIBRARY REPORT			
Total number of book	s catalogued		19,942 🔟
Number of books cata	logued this year		608 🕮
Number of books not	catalogued (approximately)		500 44-
1401110-1. 01 00-111			
FINANCIAL AID PROG	RAM		<del> -</del>
Number of students er	nploved		142 🚾
A	-4	¢.	79 650 00 🔿

524

### REPORT OF GIFTS

GENERAL	BUILDING	TOTAL
Alabama\$ 15,108.90	\$ 10,623.95	\$ 25,732.85
Arizona	56.00	879.99
Arkansas	2,193.60	8,877.89
California	1,569.93	3,809.22
Colorado	5.00	621.21
Florida	3,365.94	14,027.86
Georgia	4,997.77	24,444.31
Hawaii	85.00	370.00
Idaho	4.00	163.35
Illinois	2,302.95	9,440.10
Indiana	165.00	2,466.52
Kansas	34.00	434.49
Kentucky	3,363.07	8,134.73
Louisiana	50.00	120.00
Maine	100.50	105.50
Maryland	273.35	350.39
Michigan	7,476.37	18,072.34
Minnesota	_	235.05
Mississippi	3,315.82	12,065.09
16,465.87 ي	1,456.63	17,922.50
New Hampshire	113.23	242.23
North Carolina	19,443.22	60,842.04
Ohio	1,104.00	7,820.26
Oklahoma	1,961.29	11,524.69
South Carolina	6,937.12	19,063.94
Tennessee	8,773.91	34,285.05
Texas	1,744.80	5,739.11
Virginia	2,743.22	12,144.68
Washington		215.66
West Virginia	413.00	3,942.18
W.N.A.C	50.00	537.05
Missionaries	155.00	485.00
Matching Gifts	4,563.50	5,963.50
Staff & students	1,201.78	5,630.13
Public Offerings	_	1,506.22
Other	110.00	238.28
\$227,700.46	\$ 90,752.95	\$318,453.41

#### FINANCIAL STATEMENT

# Balance Sheet May 31, 1972 with comparative figures for 1971

ASSETS	Α	S	SE	Т	S
--------	---	---	----	---	---

1972

1971

I becatricted.	
Unrestricted: Cash	20 504 00
Accounts receivable:	39,561.08
Students	5 890.97
Staff and others	
Due from plant fund	
90,429.1 Inventory	<u>1</u> <u>29,901.65</u> 34 4,381.08
Other unrestricted assets	
Total unrestricted	73,843.81
Restricted:	3 34,670.96
Cash	
Due from current general funds	7 350.53
Total restricted	
Total current funds	<u>1 108,865.30</u>
Loan funds:	
Cash	
Notes receivable	<u>8 32,883.03</u>
Total loan funds	<u>4</u> <u>65,221.15</u>
Endowment funds:	Щ
Cash	6 7,390.19 <b>9</b>
Marketable securities, at cost	=
(market value \$860.32)	
Total endowment funds	<u>9,196.83</u>
	_
Plant funds (notes 1 and 3):	Ш
Unexpended:	
Cash	9 204,456.12
Accounts receivable46.0	- <u>-</u>
Securities (note 4)	
Total unexpended plant funds 116,136.5	2 <u>260,109.25</u>
Investment in plant, at cost:	ية
Land	
Buildings	0 1,100,000.01
Equipment	3 186,374.81
Construction in progress	7 553,532,48
Total investment in plant	
Total plant funds	4 2,338,620.06 W
Agency funds - cash	
<u>\$2,811,754.1</u>	9 2,525,692.38
	_

Current funds:

# 38 - REPORTS / FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE

#### LIABILITIES

Output formals	<u> 1972</u>	<u> 1971</u>
Current funds:		
Unrestricted:     Accounts payable     Students' credit balances     Accrued salaries     Due to current restricted funds     Total liabilities Fund balance     Total unrestricted	2,858.08 .10,604.49 1,023.37 .30,953.34 107,035.27	10,178.65 2,237.02 9,763.86 350.53 22,530.06 51,313.75 73,843.81
Restricted: Fund balances Total current funds		35,021.49 108,865.30
Contingent liabilities (note 2)		
Loan funds:		
Principal of funds, including \$23,307.39		
refundable under National Defense		
Student Loan Program	<u>.68,137.84</u>	65,221.15
Endowment funds:		
Principal of funds	9,670.70	9,196.83
Diagram Inc.		
Plant funds: Unexpended:		
Accounts payable	242.75	28,131,35
Due to current funds		20,131.35
		236,355.22
Lease obligation (note 1)		(4,377.32)
Total unexpended plant funds		260.109.25
Invested in plant fund:	110,100,02	200,109.25
Lease obligation (note 1)		851,122.78 22,500.00
Net investment in plant		1,204,888.03
Total invested in plant	462,706.92	2,078,510.81
Total plant funds	578,843.44	2,338,620.06
Agency funds - fund balances		3,789.04
<u>\$2,</u> 1	<u>811,754.19</u>	2,525,692.38

#### Current Unrestricted Funds Revenue, Expenditures and Transfers Year ended May 31, 1972

	<u> 1972</u>	<u>1971</u>
Current funds revenue:		
Educational and general:		
Student tuition and fees	\$292,985,52	241,257.40
Gifts	230.540.34	190,185.55
Other sources	4.088.74	1,595.59
Total educational and general	527 614 60	433,038.54
Auxiliary enterprises	326 471 44	254,548.15
Total current funds revenue	954 096 04	687.586.69
	. 004,000.04	60,080,08
Current funds expenditures and transfers:		
Expenditures:	22 225 05	21,555.34
Student services		
Public information and fund raising	/1,/15.50	59,878.54
General institutional	22,262.08	19,521.30
Instructional	. 171,325.44	153,066.24
Library	15,049.34	20,574.50
Operation and maintenance of physical plant	68,861.08	50,144.53
Auxiliary enterprises (note 1)	. 372,269.07	261,846.14
General administration	50,756.16	52,455.38
Other educational operations	. <u>2,900.00</u>	<u> 2,875.00</u>
Total current funds expenditures	. <u>798,364.52</u>	<u>641,916.97</u>
Transfers to:		
Plant funds	. –	50,000.00
Loan funds		17,500.00
Total transfers		67,500.00
Total current funds		
expenditures and transfers	. 798.364.52	709,416.97
Excess (deficiency) of current funds		
revenue over expenditures and transfers	. \$55,721.52	<u>(21,830.28</u> )

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

#### Statement of Changes in Fund Balances Year ended May 31, 1972

			Endowmen	<u>t</u>	
Curren	t funds	Loan funds	<u>funds</u>	Plant	funds
Fund balances - beginning of year \$ 51,313.75 Excess of current funds revenue over	Restricted 35,021.49	65,221.15	9,196.83	Unexpended (4,377.32)	Net invest- ment in plant 1,204,888.03
expenditures and transfers			_	_	_
Gifts	37,424.33	8,007.01		123,148.80	_
Investment income	1,310.28	615.29	473.87	1,182.19	*****
Plant fund	(59,824.60)	_		59,824,60	
Current funds	_	_		_	63,284.42
Plant funds	_		_	(166,489.86)	166,489.86
Current funds	_	_		_	22,397.00
Plant funds	_			(10,500.00)	10,500.00
NDSLF teacher's cancellations		(576.91)	_	_	, <u> </u>
Repayments to Federal Government	*****	(5,128.70)		_	_
Expansion fund expense			_	(44,622.45)	
Other changes				(11,529,19)	
Fund balances - end of year	<u>13,931.50</u>	<u>68,137.84</u>	<u>9,670.70</u>	(53,363.23)	1,467,559.31

See Notes to Financial Statement

#### Notes to Financial Statements May 31, 1972

- (1) The College has a long-term lease agreement for a men's dormitory. During March, 1970 the College entered into an agreement to lease a women's dormitory and dining building which was financed by bonds aggregating \$750,000.00 with interest rates between 7½%-8%. Revenues from the dormitories are pledged to secure the rental payments under these leases. The lease agreements provide for the College to acquire the properties when the indebtedness of the lessors shall be fully paid. The leased properties and the related obligations have been included in the balance sheet under plant funds. Expenditures of auxiliary enterprises include payments under the above agreements amounting to \$99,008.23 and \$56,605.70 in 1972 and 1971, respectively.
- (2) At May 31, 1972 the College was contingently liable as guarantor of notes payable by students in the aggregate amount of \$29,291.96.
- (3) At May 31, 1972 the College had a 5% unsecured note payable of \$12,000.00 with an indefinite maturity.

(4) Securities of the unexpended plant fund are as follows:	
Church bonds, at face value\$ 4,	750.00
85 shares Ford Motor Co., common stock, at fair market value at	
date of gift (quoted market value \$5,737.50)5,	122.13
\$70,000.00 T.V.A. 4.4% Power Bonds, due November 1985, at	
cost (quoted market value \$51,800.00)	325.00
\$58.6	697.13

(5) The College has a noncontributory pension plan covering all full-time employees who have attained the age of twenty-five and have two years of service before attaining the age of fifty-five. Total pension expense for the year was \$20,858.60 compared to \$18,808,44 for 1971. The policy of the College is to fund pension cost accrued.

#### Current Unrestricted Funds Revenue Year ended May 31, 1972

	<u>1972</u>	<u>1971</u>	Č
Educational and general:			C
Student tuition and fees:			Ш
Matriculation fees	2,840.00	2,610.00	ã
Registration fees	.11,847.50	10,181.00	~
Tuition	252,526.85	207,056.00	<u> </u>
Library fees	3,100.00	2,697.00	u
Physical education fees		674.00	10
Practical work department fees	1,550.00	1,348.00	۵
Music fees		5,745.50	<
Graduation fees		925.00	Œ
Summer school	5,121.00	4,085.00	
Evening school	1,145.00	1,125.50	
Miscellaneous fees	4,409.17	4,811.40	C.
Conference fees			Ц
Total student tuition and fees	292,985.52	<u>241,257.40</u>	М
Gifts:			u
Unrestricted gifts	227,700.46	183,482.09	-
Special gifts	2,839.88	<u>6,703.46</u>	
Total gifts	230,540.34	<u> 190,185.55</u>	P
Other sources:			Č
Gain on sale of equipment	1,245.50	455.00	ă
Interest income	1,9 <b>63.7</b> 3	_	Q.
Miscellaneous	<i>.</i> 879.51	<u>1,140.59</u>	ш
Total other sources		<u>1,595.59</u>	
Total educational and general	<u> 614.60,527</u>	<u>433,038.54</u>	6.

41 – REPORTS / FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE

ш
O
ш
read.
Q
COLLEGE
T BIBLE COLLEGE
acer.
$\alpha$
AA
1.2.4
acc
W
1
۵.
⋖
ILL BAPTIST
-
-
ш
Ш
02
FREEV
_
in
REPORTS /
0
indus prints
$\sim$
Lean
idd Cor
l.f.
1
N

Auxiliary enterprises:	
Dormitories	91.812.18
Dining hall	132,772.92
Bookstore	29,963.05
Snackshop	
Total auxiliary enterprises	254,548.15
Total revenue	687,586.69

#### Current Unrestricted Funds Expenditures Year ended May 31, 1972

Student services:	<u>1972</u>	<u>1971</u>
Registrar's office Dean of men Dean of women Testing services	5,100.00	10,645.65 3,076.25 3,750.00 1.04
Student handbook Student activities Staff benefits Student services miscellaneous	74.25 500.04 1,355.50 420.52	100.00 628.98 981.84
Catalog	23,225.85	<u>2,371.58</u> 21,555.34
Public relations office Publicity Publications Promotional services Staff benefits	15,056.84	17,784.72 9,183.29 10,412.64 19,455.59 <u>3,042.30</u> 59.878.54
General institutional: Telephone Office services Professional fees General insurance Commencement Convocations Membership fees Bad debts Staff benefits	7,688.89 2,035.00 159.00 1,879.80 2,317.96 442.00 1,078.08 1,275.80	4,462.85 6,947.83 1,350.00 - 1,156.99 1,260.20 623.00 501.20 1,206.57
Additions to fixed assets Other	937.33 22,262.08	1,352.78 659.88 19,521.30
Instructional: Faculty salaries Clerical and student wages Telephone Instructional supplies and expense Physical education department Stage productions Summer school supplies Music department Practical work department Science department Visual aid and film rental Staff benefits Travel Historical library Additions to fixed assets		122,776.96 2,077.57 371.74 1,065.09 1,595.01 1,214.61 — 1,984.92 1,122.05 67.54 192,45 17,275.63 218.65 53.66 53.050.34 153,066.24

Library:	
Salaries	7,787.67
Student wages	6,333.37
Supplies and expense	1,067.61
Books	1,553.99
Binding	457.32
Staff benefits	595.14
Additions to fixed assets	2,779.40
15,049.34	20,574.50
Operation and maintenance of physical plant:	7 000 00
Supervision	7,200.00 11,722.06
Salaries and wages	9,264.75
Materials and repairs	9,087.95
Heat	2,684.17
Electricity	11,781.22
Water	1,344.50
Campus and grounds	6,286.64 3,394.68
Watchmen	1,575.00
Fire protection and safety	212.00
General trucking	697.03
Staff benefits	3,356.58
Additions to fixed assets	6,737.95
100,071.08	75,344.53
Less allocation to auxiliary enterprises	<u>25,200.00</u> 50,144.53
68,861.08	50,144.55
Auxiliary enterprises:  Dormitories:	
Salaries	10,639.41
Staff benefits	709.34
Laundry	96.07 <u>ш</u> 888.23 <b>с</b>
Heat	4,920.58 <b>Ш</b>
Electricity	4,354.82
Water	4,052.14 <b>5</b> 1,390.00 <b>5</b>
Insurance	
Additions to equipment	485.42 W
Miscellaneous	726.77 <b>-</b> 56,605.70
Allocation of general administrative, operation,	56,605.70
and maintenance expenses	27,045.00
\$162,289.47	111,913.48
Dining hall: Salaries	48,486.85
Staff benefits	48,486.85 <b>4</b> 2,746.34 <b>m</b>
Groceries	48,646.49
Kitchen supplies	267.67
Heat1,534.46	230.67
Electricity	514.32 ш
Water	253.63 <b>ш</b> 358.95 <b>ш</b>
Fuel	1,027.24
Telephone	252.20
General insurance	204.00
Additions to equipment	447.10
Miscellaneous	286.48
Rent (interest)	447.10 <b>H</b> 08.285 <b>H</b> 00.000.00
and maintenance expenses	9,135.00
162,994.30	100.000.01
	122,957.04

Book store:	
Salaries	4,291.02
Laundry	509.31
Book store cost of sales	19,286.96
Postage	847.00
Miscellaneous	291.33
Allocation of general administrative, operation,	20.100
and maintenance expenses	1,750.00
26,463,16	26,975,62
Snackshop:	_20,010.02
Salaries	_
Food costs	_
Miscellaneous	<u>_</u>
Equipment	_
20,522.14	
Total auxiliary enterprises	261,846,14
General administration:	201,070.17
Board of Trustees	1,940.08
Chief administrative office	16,330.89
Academic administrative office	7,426.10
Business and finance administrative	31,528.63
Staff benefits	7,959.68
67.056.16	65,185.38
Less allocation to auxiliary enterprises	12,730.00
50.756.16	52,455.38
Other educational operations:	52,455.56
Summer school	1,475.00
Evening school	1,400.00
	2,875.00
Total expenditures	<u>641,916.97</u>

#### SUGGESTED STATE QUOTAS

#### General Fund June 1, 1972 - May 31, 1973

Alabama
Arizona
Arkansas
California
Colorado
Florida
Florida
Georgia
Hawaii
Idaho
Illinois
Indiana
lowa
Kansas
Kentucky
Maryland
Michigan
Mississippi
Missouri
New Hampshire
New Mexico
North Carolina
Ohio
Oklahoma
South Carolina
Tennessee
Texas
Virginia
Washington
West Virginia
W.N.A.C
Other
\$250,000,00
\$250,000.00

#### FOREIGN MISSIONS REPORT

This has been an eventful year for Free Will Baptist Foreign Missions. We saw our income reach an all time high, \$829,731.44, for 1971. The trip to Latin America, January 17—February 9, 1972, by our board chairman, Joe Ange, and myself was a first for both the general director and chairman to visit a field at the same time.

It has been my privilege to visit six of our present mission fields since January 17 of this year. I am convinced that frequent visits to the fields by myself, by staff members and by board members are highly beneficial to our ministries. When the missionary can introduce his people, when he can show us his city, his property or lack of property, when we can experience his problem of language, of culture, of climate, of travel and cost of living in a foreign country, he knows we can act more wisely regarding his work.

We are seeing the evident signs of maturity in our foreign missions department. Leaders with common sense, keen intelligence, qualities of judgment and drive are emerging. We have men with ambition, with professional qualities, with desire for self improvement and with hopes, dreams and ideas (creativity). We have men of action. Men may possess talent, have great ideas and wish to progress but these are in vain unless these men have driving power. "Faith without works is dead." Performance is the test of character and the evidence of faith.

We have a team of workers who are capable, dedicated and cooperative. The diversity of personalities and complexities of work requires respect and tolerance of differing opinions. The chosen disciples were not of the same mold. They were men of variety. They were given liberty to express their views and exercise their gifts (Matthew 26:8; 10:1).

Don Robirds is to be commended for the smooth transition and adjustment he has made in becoming director of communications. He brings to our office not only his journalistic abilities but also his missionary experience. He assumes responsibility for student ministries and orientation of missionary candidates. HEARTBEAT monthly circulation is now at 50,500 and we have increased from six to ten issues per year. Our goal is to place HEARTBEAT in the home of every Free Will Baptist.

A lot of credit can be given to Henry Van Kluyve for our increase of income. His pastor's conferences as well as his personal involvement in missionary conferences have proven to be a "profitable ministry." No other team member is exposed to so much criticism or expected to meet so many demands.

The swirling economy of our world is not easily controlled by budgeted amounts proposed nearly 18 months ago. Harold Critcher, our director of finance, has done a tremendous job of staying on top of this situation. He has also had the responsibility of supervising the installing of our computer equipment and of training personnel to operate the machines.

I have mingled emotions in announcing Mrs. Sloan's retirement. She is a lady who has given heart, soul and body to our work. She has come early and stayed late. She has handled thousands of dollars, written thousands of receipts, given personal attention not only to missionaries, but to donors' requests for prayer and information. She has certainly earned her retirement and deserves a time of leisure to reflect over her years of work and to enjoy doing things which she has not had time to do before. Public recognition will be given at this National Association for her years of faithful service.

Our secretarial personnel are competent, congenial women who take personal pride in their work. Our circulation and shipping workers are selected young men who share our concern for an effective ministry.

We are laborers together with those whom God has sent to proclaim the message in the following countries:

#### BRAZIL

22 missionaries and 29 children

The vastness of this country and its opportunities for evangelism is seen by the number of Free Will Baptist missionaries projected for this decade. The Brazil field council has requested 50 more missionaries by 1980.

47

We are now witnessing in the states of Sao Paulo, Minas Gerais, Santa Caterina and Rio Grande do Sul.

#### **CUBA**

The Association of Free Will Baptist churches has petitioned the government for a permit to open the seminary. The permit has not been given but a youth conference has been planned for later this year. The Association is composed of 14 Free Will Baptist congregations served by 12 pastors.

#### FRANCE

#### 6 missionaries and 9 children

Opportunities abound in this country of 50 million people. The Dan Merkhs and Joe Haases serve two established church groups at Nantes and Rennes and a preaching point at St. Nazaire. The Don Sextons are presently in French language study. We need mature pastors for France now!

#### INDIA

#### 4 missionaries and 4 children

Government restrictions prevent the addition of new missionaries. National leaders have been trained to assume greater responsibility of the work. We have five pastors in North India and four pastors in South India.

#### **IVORY COAST**

#### 22 missionaries and 18 children

Missionaries continue to emphasize evangelism, church planting and training national leaders. New villages have been entered with the gospel. The growth of the church is seen in the developing of young Africans for leadership.

A special project for this year and for 1973 is the publishing of the Koulango New Testament. We will need \$25,000 for this project.

Jerry and Carol Pinkerton and David and Shirley Turner are new appointees to Ivory Coast.

#### JAPAN

#### 8 missionaries and 15 children

In the past it has been reported that only one per cent of the Japanese population is Christian. A recent census revealed three per cent declaring themselves Christian. The task of evangelism in this country is tremendous. We need many more missionaries for Japan.

The Good News Team made a tremendous impact on Hokkaido. From the time the Larry Condits arrived in September until they and the Good News Team returned to the states the first of June, they witnessed 34 first-time decisions, many rededications and many heard who will believe. Jerry and Janice Banks are new appointees to Japan.

#### PANAMA

#### 5 missionaries and 6 children

We are seeing some blessed results after some difficult times of sowing. A Bible Institute program began in June in the church in Panama City. Tom Willey, Jr., Bill Fulcher, and Mrs. Mabel Willey are preparing young men and women for church leadership. The Larry Inscoes are on depution raising support for their ministry in Panama.

#### URUGUAY - SOUTH BRAZIL

#### 5 missionaries and 6 children

The six church groups in this area are the results of ten years of faithful Free Will Baptist missionary endeavors. The Paul Robinsons and Bill Fulchers came to Rivera, Uruguay in 1962. They were later joined by Molly Barker and the Walter Ellisons. The churches have developed national leaders who have assumed a large part of responsibility for the work.

#### SPAIN

We are aware of the great need of this country and prayerfully wait to send missionaries. Surely at this National Assocition there are those who will respond to this field.

I present to you at this association one of the best financial reports we have ever given. Our balance sheet in the auditor's report shows significant progress in 1971 in our financial status. Our total receipts for 1971 were \$829,731.44 and our disbursements were \$713,456.88. The states of North Carolina (\$122,740) and Tennessee (\$110,949) are the first states to exceed \$100,000 in annual contributions to foreign missions. We have a growing number of churches giving \$5,000 or more annually to foreign missions. Our proposed budget for 1973 is over \$960,000 and we believe God through our Free Will Baptists will provide the support we need. We solicit your enrollment in Project 5000. This will be our second year for the Willey Memorial Christmas Offering. Our Missions Call-A-Thon is April 15, 1973. These special offerings are allocated to special projects and emergency needs.

Of the 100 new missionaries projected for this decade we have 17 new ones who have gone to their field or are under appointment. Of these under appointment, the Jerry Bankses, Dock Catons and Patsy Vanhook will enter Missionary Internship this September.

We thank you, our Free Will Baptist constituency, for your gifts and prayers. We express appreciation to our various denominational agencies and colleges for their sharing with us in a world-wide program of evangelism. We take particular notice and express appreciation to the Woman's Auxiliaries for the provision closet and many projects which provide for our missionaries.

We remember the promise of our Lord in obedience to the Great Commission, "Lo, I am with you...," and to Him is given praise for blessing our ministries exceedingly abundantly with more than we ask.

J. Reford Wilson, General Director

# FINANCIAL STATEMENT OPERATING FUND – BALANCE SHEET

	Decemb <u>1971</u>	er 31 <u>1970</u>
Cash	55,207.45	107,137.81 226.16 25,059.50 3,000.00 135,423.47
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALA Liabilities Accounts payable	4,381.83 675.90 5,057.73 . 229,974.50 16,840.22 . 246,814.72	4,214.13 <u>669.18</u> <u>4,883.31</u> 166,002.77 ( <u>35,462.61</u> ) 130,540.16 135,423.47
REAL ESTATE AND EQUIPMENT FUND — BALA	ANCE SHEET	
December 31, 1971		
ASSETS  Cameras and projectors Circulation equipment Office furniture and equipment Automobile Residence Deposit on Equipment Purchase Contracts Total Real Estate and Equipment Fund Assets	6,290.36 11,316.47 2,890.86 26,606.04 3,000.00	<u>52,077.01</u>
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALA Liabilities Note payable on residence (payable \$116.80 per month for principal and interest)		35,769.49
INCOME AND OPERATING FUNI Year ended December 31,		CODEIC
Income Contributions Gain on securities sold Interest income Other income Total Income	7,413.46 1,916.27	.829.731.44

Expenditures Foreign Missions	
Social security for missionaries	
Itinerant expense for missionaries	
Itinerant expense for	
appointees	
missionaries	563,585.55
Travel and Promotion	552,555.55
Board members expense	
Department officials 6,741.44	
Operational expense- Department car	
Informational service production	
postage	
Audio-Visual	
Willey Biography	40,000.75
Miscellaneous	49,628.75
Salaries	
on residence	
Office supplies and equipment	
Postage	
Dues	
Rent ,	
Social security and retirement	
Auditing	100.040.50
Miscellaneous	
Fund Balance, January 1, 1971 Designated for mission use	166 002 77
General (Deficit)	(35,462.61) 130,540.16
Fund Balance, December 31, 1971  Designated for mission use  General	229,974.50
	-

#### **INCOME BY YEARS**

1967 — 522,217.10 1968 — 526,084.19 1969 — 605,109.72 1970 — 662,334.40 1971 — 829,731.44

#### **QUOTA RECEIPTS** Year ended December 31, 1971

i cai cilucu Decell	mei 31, 13.	<i>,</i> 1	
			Receipts
			Over
An	nount of A	mount of	(Under)
	Quota	Receipts	Quota
Alabama	,000.00 2	21,362.81 (	637.19)
Arizona	,250.00	3,707.55	457.55
Arkansas		37,026.62	13,526.62
California		9,271.84	771.84
Canada		420.00 (	80.00)
Colorado		989.17 (	
Florida		21,779.24	3.029.24
Georgia		29,501.83 (	
Hawaii		904.09	404.09
Idaho		477.06 (	
Illinois		8,440.66 (	
Indiana		6,840.97	1,140.97
lowa		1,470.15 (	1.029.85)
Kansas		6,005.96	
Kentucky		3,327.07	1,827.07
Louisiana	. – –	232,41 (	
Maine		1,378.00 (	1,622.00)
Maryland		686.46	313.54)
Michigan		66,746.57 (	10,253,43)
Mississippi		1,921.31	421.31
Missouri		9.961.96	22,961.96
New Hampshire		1,146.19 (	
New Mexico	500.00 500.00	1,075.55	424,45)
North Carolina		1,075.55 ( 2.740.54	40,740.54
		1,525.71	4,525.71
Ohio		6,691.16	16,691,16
Oklahoma		30.00 (	
Oregon	000.00		10,561.63
South Carolina		2,561.63	
Tennessee		0,949.26	35,949.26
Texas		1,979.33 (	
Virginia		31,353.62	6,353.62
Washington		916.12 (	
West Virginia	,250,00 1	8,885.71	2,635.71
Miscellaneous		0,209.59	9,501,69
Totals	<u>,657.90 82</u>	<u>2,516.14</u>	<u>147,858,24</u>

#### 1973 - Proposed Budget of Expense

#### Foreign Fields

Africa	63,830.00 80,793.00 .1,200.00 10,568.00 12,750.00 38,454.00 40,061.00 38,489.00 24,540.00 28,000.00 17,500.00 40,000.00 38,450.00
Travel and Promotion	
Audio Visual	.1,500.00 .4,000.00 200.00 52,613.00 15,000.00
Administrative	
Salaries  Department Postage Auditing E.F.M.A. Dues Emplovers Compensation Employees Hospitalization Employees Payroll Liability Administrative Housing Administrative Social Security Administrative Utilities Administrative Retirement Office Rent Office Telephones Maintenance of Office Equipment Maintenance and Insurance on Residence Office Supplies Residence Payments Contingency	10,000.00 .1,000.00 .550.00 .550.00 .500.00 .2,000.00 .4,440.00 .2,700.00 .2,700.00 .320.00 .320.00 .4,500.00 .7,000.00 .4,000.00 .2,000.00
	34,511.00

#### PROPOSED BUDGET OF INCOME STATE QUOTAS-1973

STATE	QUOTA
Alabama	
Alaska	
Arizona	5,500.00
Arkansas	42,000.00
California	
Canada	
Colorado	
Connecticut	
Delaware	
Florida	
Georgia	35 500 00
Hawaii	
Idaho	
Illinois	
Indiana	
lowa	
Kansas	
Kentucky	
Louisiana	
Maine	
Maryland	
Massachusetts	
Michigan	
Minnesota	
Mississippi	
Missouri	
Montana	
Nebraska	
New Hampshire	
New Jersey	
Nevada	
New Mexico	
New York	
North Carolina	
North Dakota	
Ohio	
Oklahoma	
Oregon	800.00
Pennsylvania	100.00
Puerto Rico	
South Carolina	
South Dakota	
Rhode Island	
Tennessee	.108.800.00
Texas	20.500.00
Vermont	
Virginia	
Utah	50.00
Washington	2 000 00
West Virginia	35,500,00
Wisconsin	
Wyoming	100.00
Miscellaneous	19 361 00
Wiscendieous	\$964,511.00
	<u> </u>

#### **EXECUTIVE CHURCH BONDS, INC. REPORT**

We are happy to bring the eleventh annual report for Executive Church Bonds, Inc. Even though the company did not function in full capacity but nine months in 1971, we did complete nineteen programs totalling \$968,000.00 at an income of \$23,858.84 (see financial report). We are grateful for the opportunity to minister in the following eight states: California, Missouri, Illinois, Tennessee, Oklahoma, Kansas, Arkansas, and Ohio.

Executive Church Bonds, Inc. has enjoyed assisting the above states and the nineteen programs listed also as a part of this report. We have been faced with many legal obstacles and several complications in recent months. We request the prayers of all that the Lord will have His way in all these matters.

I have had many joyous moments across the United States as I have had the privilege to visit many of the churches that have had building programs through the assistance of Executive Church Bonds, Inc. It is thrilling to see these churches as they advance for the Lord as their attendance grows and as their ministry expands. I feel that the Lord has a place for this ministry in the future growth of our Free Will Baptist denomination. Executive Church Bonds, Inc. has reached almost ten million dollars in bond issues in assisting our churches throughout 27 states in building needs and expansion programs.

Let me take this opportunity to thank all of you for your prayers on our recent trip as we visited the mission fields and most of our missionaries throughout the world. It was a very enjoyable trip and I shall always remember it as one of the highlights of my life time. The five months we were away were especially beneficial to us in helping to understand the needs of the world and why it is so needful for us to establish ourselves as Free Will Baptists throughout the United States as well as the uttermost parts of the earth.

Please remember to pray for the ministry of Executive Church Bonds, Inc.

Respectfully submitted, Francis W. Boyle, Director

#### **Programs Conducted In 1971**

Santa Paula Free Will Baptist Church Santa Paula, California (\$55,000.00 Issue)

Santa Paula, California
(\$55,000.00 Issue)
Rev. Glenn Lewis, Pastor

Free Will Baptist Church, Inc.
O'Fallon, Missouri
(\$40,000.00 Issue)
Rev. Donald W. Lombard, Pastor

First Free Will Baptist Church
Decatur, Illinois
(\$15,000.00 Issue)
Rev. Jim Summerson, Pastor

Cookeville Free Will Baptist Church
Cookeville, Tennessee
(\$100,000.00 Issue)
Rev. Bobby Greene, Pastor

Southeast Free Will Baptist Church
Tulsa, Oklahoma
(\$100,000.00 Issue)
Rev. Jerry, Rhoades, Pastor (\$100,000.00 Issue) Rev. Jerry Rhoades, Pastor

Woodbine Free Will Baptist Church Nashville, Tennessee (\$40,000.00 Issue) Rev. Richard R. Cordell, Pastor

Friendship Free Will Baptist Church Ashland City, Tennessee (\$45,000.00 Issue) Rev. Don Lamb, Pastor

Portland Free Will Baptist Church, Inc. Portland, Tennessee (\$30,000.00 Issue) Rev. Roger Gosnell, Pastor

Capitol City Free Will Baptist Church, Inc. Little Rock, Arkansas (\$85,000.00 Issue) Rev. John J. Postlewaite, Pastor

First Free Will Baptist Church of San Diego Count Chula Vista, California (\$40,000.00 Issue) Rev. Bobby Martin, Pastor

Memorial Assembly of God Church Purcell, Oklahoma (\$35,000.00 Issue) Rev. Wayne Thompson, Pastor

First Free Will Baptist Church, Inc. Wellington, Kansas (\$26,000.00 Issue)
Rev. Troy L. Dobbs, Pastor

First Free Will Baptist Church Dewey, Oklahoma (\$22,000.00 Issue) Rev. Eugene Hester, Pastor

Pleasant Hill Free Will Baptist Church Norman, Oklahoma (\$30,000.00 Issue) Rev. Louis J. Wickham, Pastor First Free Will Baptist Church Salina, Kansas (\$30,000.00 Issue) Rev. Trymon Messer, Pastor

New Carlisle First Free Will Baptist Church, Inc. New Carlisle, Ohio (\$20,000.00 Issue) Rev. Charles E. Trusty, Pastor

ن

First Free Will Baptist Church Jacksonville, Arkansas (\$5,000.00 Issue) Rev. Charles Weir, Pastor

First Free Will Baptist Church Church Hill, Tennessee (\$50,000.00 Issue) Rev. M. C. Taylor, Pastor

The Sunday School Board of the National Association Nashville, Tennessee (\$200,000.00 Issue) Rev. Roger C. Reeds, Director

#### FINANCIAL STATEMENT

#### CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

Year ended December 31, 1971

	Ž
General Fund	46
Cash available, January 1, 1971	4,563.65 <b>SONO</b>
Receipts	Ē
Service fees	
Interest on savings	23,858.84
Total to be accounted for	
Disbursements	ည
Accounting and auditing	5
Insurance-employee	CHUR
Legal, registry, etc	ပ
Miscellaneous	Ψ
Office equipment maintenance	≥
Office space rental	<b>=</b>
Office supplies	EXECUTIV
Payroll taxes	Щ
Printing	×
Promotion	m
Salaries and commissions	S /
Housing allowance	
Telephone and telegraph	EPORT
Travel	Š
Transfer to Service Fund	
Total Disbursements	23.398.59 <b>~</b>
Cash available, December 31, 1971	
Gusti available/ Bedelinder City (City)	r
	വ

INC.
<b>BONDS</b>
CHURCH
<b>EXECUTIVE</b> (
- REPORTS /

Service and Trust Fund	Service Fund	North Carolina Fund
Cash available, January 1, 1971	3,907.99	399.00
Receipts Transfer from General Fund	968.00	
Interest on savings		
Collection on North Carolina property		1,639.00
Disbursements	<b>-0.00</b>	
Trustee services		<u>.1,210.00</u>
Cash available, December 31, 1971	<u>.5,024.87</u>	<u>429.00</u>

#### **Budget For 1973**

Operating Expense
Salaries and Commissions
Social Security
Travel and Expense
Printing
Housing
Reserve Service Fund
Telephone
Legal Fees, Registration, etc
Insurance, general
Insurance, employee
Office Rent
Promotion
Postage
Payroll Taxes
Office equipment, maintenance, & supplies
Accounting and Auditing
Misc
Total Operating Expense
Anticipated Income from Service Fees

# 57 - REPORTS / BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE

### BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE REPORT

This has been a year of growth for your Department of Retirement and Insurance. The retirement plan is finding its place in our denomination. Four departments of our National Association and three state associations are actively participating with their employees. More and more churches are contributing with their pastor—this is the key to our future growth.

The money placed in the retirement fund is invested to help our churches and denominational agencies in their building and expansion programs. During a ministers active years his retirement money is used to help our churches; while providing for an adequate retirement in future years.

The following table reflects our growth:

Date	Total	Number of
	Assets	Participants 4 8 1
January '69	\$ 680	11
January '70	11,760	35
July '70	40,682	120
January '71	54,579	135
July '71	73,697	169
January '72	97,115	184

Churches and denominational agencies should consider placing money now in savings, or invested elsewhere, in one of our special trust funds. These funds earn an excellent return and may be withdrawn with reasonable notice.

There is \$715,000 of life insurance in force as of June 1. Our rates are competitive and usually lower than other plans. A young man beginning his ministry at age 25 can have \$10,000 protection for as low as \$3.48 a month. At age 40 the rate for the same coverage is only \$6.34 a month. Find out what the rate would be for your pastor. Enroll him today!!

Our churches should have a ministry to the aged. This is a vital need. We will help in meeting these needs. Some material giving specific suggestions will be available soon.

Our excellent Cancer Care Plan is still available to all Free Will Baptist families.

Finally, thanks for your support. The future needs are great, but we will meet this challenge with your continued help.

Herman L. Hersey, General Manager

#### FINANCIAL STATEMENT

#### Balance Sheet December 31, 1971

#### Assets

Assets
Operating fund:
Cash in checking account
Cash in savings account
Total operating fund assets
Properties fund:
Office furniture and fixtures
Retirement fund:
Cash in savings account
Investment in church bonds, at par value
Note receivable, due in monthly installments of
\$139.50 beginning January 1, 1971\$3,348.00
Less unearned interest <u> 621.00</u>
Net note receivable
Note receivable, due ninety days after
November 3, 1971, renewable, with
interest at 8.8% per annum due every
ninety days
Due from operating fund
Total retirement fund assets
Total assets
Total assets
11 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Liabilities and Fund Balances (Deficit)
Operating fund:  Due to retirement fund\$ 2,909.54
Fund balance (deficit), Exhibit B
Total operating fund liabilities
and fund balance (deficit) 1,957.79
Properties fund:
Investment in office furniture and fixtures
Retirement fund:
Note payable, due July 15, 1977
with interest at 7% payable
semiannually
Sales deposits on bonds
Provision for contingencies
Fund balances:
Participants' accounts \$64,783.14
Held in trust for other church agencies
Total fund balances, Exhibit C80,032,94
Total retirement fund liabilities
and fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances (deficit)

#### Operating Fund Revenues, Expenditures and Fund Balance (Deficit) Year ended December 31, 1971

Revenues: Gifts:

Cooperative plan of support .\$5,138.11 Other state gifts .2,610.64 Miscellaneous gifts .352.30 Total gifts .8,101.05 Service fees from retirement fund .2,009.31 Enrollment fees .890.00 Insurance commissions .300.00 Interest income16.20	
Total revenues	
Board's share of participants' insurance premiums:	
Premiums paid       9,847.82         Less premiums collected       7,485.89         Net cost to Board       2,361.93         Salaries       4,614.00         Investment in properties       1,209.79         Travel       834.39         Board members' expenses       559.96         Legal and auditing       550.00         Office supplies       545.16         Postage       183.10         Interest       149.54         Sundry       106.07         Advertising and promotion       94.27         Telephone and telegraph       90.00         Total expenditures       .11.298.21         Excess of revenues over expenditures       .18.35         Fund balance (deficit) at beginning of year       (970.10)         Fund balance (deficit) at end of year, Exhibit A       (951.75)	I AND INSURANCE
	Z
Changes In Retirement Fund Balances	<u>≥</u>
Year ended December 31, 1971	1. 2000 2000
Fund balances at end of year. Exhibit A	- KEPUK IS / BOAKD OF RETIREMENT AND INSURANCE
<u> </u>	) D

#### **BUDGET, 1973**

EXPENDITURES:
Board's share of insurance premiums
Salaries and Employee benefits
Travel and Promotion
Board members travel
Office supplies and expense
Ministry to the aging,000
Miscellaneous
\$19,750
ANTICIPATED INCOME:
Cooperative Plan of Support
Other state gifts
Enrollment and service fees
Insurance commissions
\$19,750

#### SUNDAY SCHOOL DEPARTMENT REPORT

Dear Friend in Christ,

The past ten years have been a decade of miracles. So much so that I have adopted the title "Decade of Miracles" for this report. I shall not try to rehearse this decade of miracles in this space as we have printed a colorful brochure that tells this ten-year story. Copies of this brochure are available at the Sunday School Department booth in the display area. "Decade of Miracles" is also the title of the slide presentation that we shall be viewing during this convention.

It has been thrilling to be a part of this growing, thriving Sunday School Department for the past ten years. I have witnessed the work of God through miracle after miracle. May His name be exalted for what has been done.

I look forward to an even greater future. Sunday schools are coming alive across our denomination. Bussing is taboo today for the secular school but it is the "in thing" among Free Will Baptist Sunday schools. At last we are adhering to the advice of W. A. Ogden who urged us to "Bring them in!" We are also obeying our Lord Who commanded us to "go out into the highways and hedges and compel them to come in that my house may be filled."

This past year saw the Sunday School Department move into its big, spacious building at 114 Bush Rd. The building was purchased immediately after the National Association last year. The Sunday School Board bought the building and five acres of land for \$178,000.00. In addition the Board holds an option on an additional 4½ acres of land. Even with renovation costs the Board has less than \$6.00 per square foot invested in their new facilities.

The Board has but one recommendation to make to the National Association with the exception of the normal recommendations that the budget and audit be approved. This recommendation involves budgets and audits of the future. The recommendation is as follows:

"That the Sunday School Board be permitted to shift from a calendar year operation to a fiscal year operation. With this shift our fiscal year will run from April 1 through March 31. This transition is recommended by our auditors. Our present period of operation makes the audit fall in the January 1—April 15 time period which is the busiest time of the year for all auditing firms.

In order to make the shift the Budget for 1972 will have to be expanded to include the first quarter of 1973. The audit for 1972 (which will be presented to the National Association while they are in session in 1973) would then cover five quarters of operation instead of the normal four quarters. Thereafter we would operate during the fiscal April 1—March 31 year."

May God bless each of you as you continue to serve Him.

Roger C. Reeds, General Director

# FINANCIAL STATEMENT OPERATING FUND INCOME AND EXPENDITURES

F	or the Year	For the Year
	Ended	Ended
D	ecember 31	December 31
	1971	1970
SALES		****
Literature	\$464,651.34	\$382,348.81
Mailing fees	23,682.42	26,258.86
Bookstore sales	. 104,551.88	88,815.04
Enlargement campaign	2,973.60	1,023.99
Vacation Bible School	11,590.08	9,149.86
Bulletin service sales	24,116.90	22,572.73
Printing service income	146.981.68	43,301,96
Total Sales	778.547.90	573,471.25
COST OF SALES	379 266 71	289,695,49
Gross Profit	300 281 19	283,775,76
Gross Profit	.000,201.10	200,770175
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE	270 200 74	256,806.25
EXPENSES (Schedule attached)	20,000.45	26,969.51
Operating Income	20,080.45	20,505.51
OTHER INCOME	4 4 774 00	040.57
Interest income	1,171.92	916.57
Building fund income		2,136.97
Miscellaneous	4,213.93	413,17
Total Other Income	<u>5,385.85</u>	3,466.71
Income Over Expenditures		\$30,436.22

# COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

EXPENSES	For the Year Ended December 31 1971	For the Year Ended December 31 1970
Printing service salaries Administrative salaries Housing allowances Office and clerical salaries Operating building maintenance Editorial and writers' salaries Postage and freight Headquarter's maintenance and telephone Office supplies and expense Shipping supplies Travel—board members Travel—other than board members Promotion and advertising Legal and accounting Employers' share social security tax Employees' group insurance Other employee benefits Automobile expense Contributions Doubtful accounts receivable Additional investment in plant and equipment Interest expense Miscellaneous Printing service maintenance Total Selling, General and Administrative Expenses	36,619.31 6,359.86 50,517.07 8,250.22 34,105.74 18,633.07 27,823.33 32,511.52 2,730.01 2,967.36 4,971.59 4,281.63 3,340.00 8,318.54 7,059.52 5,742.14 8,786.48 604.11	\$ 19,912.60 35,114.40 5,400.00 35,819.55 6,733.41 31,991.92 18,787.05 18,405.50 10,958.89 4,838.54 1,808.59 8,007.85 6,396.69 1,261.12 4,553.85 3,546.88 1,901.64 6,914.63 250.00 498.95 25,343.33 2,721.49 434.26 5,025.11
BALANCE SHEET		
December 31		
ASSETS	1971	1970
OPERATING FUND Cash (Note 1) Accounts receivable - trade Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables Net Receivables Investments - at cost Inventory - at lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market Deferred charges Deposits Total Operating Fund INVESTMENT IN PLANT, AT COST (Note 2) Operations building - Ezell & Bush (Note 1) Building - Murfreesboro Road Office equipment Printing service equipment		\$ 26,392.50 60,297.64 3,580.28 56,717.36 4,430.00 74,890.08 7,770.27 2,750.00 172,950.21 88,995.83 48,861.16 10,994.42
Total Investment in Plant	414,394.54 \$639,044.83	148,851.41 \$321,801.62

62 - REPORTS / SUNDAY SCHOOL DEPARTMENT

LIADILITIES AND LOND DALANCES	
OPERATING FUND	
Accounts payable	\$ 17,647.64
Accrued expenses	_
Due to Executive Office	10,253.38
Total Liabilities	27,901.02
OPERATING FUND BALANCE	145,049.19
Total Operating Fund	172,950.21
INVESTMENT IN PLANT FUND	
Bonds payable (Note 1)	_
7% Notes payable - bank due Feb. 8, 1972 163,000.00	19,000.00
Equipment obligations (Note 2)	5,692.50
Net investment in plant	<u> 124,158.91</u>
Total Investment in Plant	<u> 148,851.41</u>
\$639,044.83	\$321,801.62

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Note 3).

# STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES December 31, 1971

	Operating Fund	Investment in Plant
Balance at beginning of year		\$124,158.91
Additions (deductions)	<del></del>	<del></del>
Excess of operating fund income		
over expenditures	25,466.30	_
Additions to office, warehouse and		
printing service equipment from		24.000 75
operating fund income	–	34,080.75
Addition of new operations building (Ezell and Bush) from proceeds		
of fixed asset indebtedness	(233 114 49)	233,114,49
Payments of fixed asset fund	(200,111.10)	200,111110
indebtedness by operating fund	( 32,105.00)	32,105,00
Assumption of fixed asset indebtedness	,	,
by investment fund	264,500.00	(264,500.00)
Cost of equipment disposals	–	( 1,652.11)
Excess of proceeds of equipment disposals		
over cost		
Net Additions		33,148.13
Balance at end of year	\$1/1,138.66	<u>\$157,307.04</u>

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1—Cash includes sinking fund cash in the amount of \$3,920.57 representing deposits made with the paying agent for serial bonds issued during the year. The total bond issue is authorized at \$200,000.00 and bears interest at rates varying from 7 to 9%. At December 31, 1971 bonds in the amount of \$91,500.00 had been sold. Sinking fund requirements of the bonds call for deposits of the following amounts per year:

1972	\$16,120.00
1973	18,330.00
1974	20,930.00
1975	23,270.00
1976	24,830,00
1977-1985	26,000.00
1986	6,500.00

The bonds are secured by a deed of trust on property with a cost of \$233,114.49

and are payable serially over a period of years extending from 1972 to 1986.

NOTE 2—Investment in plant is carried at cost. Consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for non-profit institutions, no depreciation of office equipment, printing service equipment and warehouse has been provided during the year.

Printing service equipment with a cost of \$4,058.87 is pledged to secure equipment obligations of \$2,587.50 at December 31, 1971.

NOTE 3—The Board entered into certain leases in March 1972 having terms expiring from 1977 to 1979. The leases call for approximate annual rentals as follows:

1972	\$12,044.00
1973-1976	16,059.00
1977	12,900.00
1978	11,847.00
1979	2,962.00

#### **Budget for 1973**

Income       Literature Sales       503,290.00         Bookstore Sales       100,000.00         Printing Sales       250,000.00         Sunday School Supplies       12,400.00         Vacation Bible School       10,000.00         Bulletin Service       22,000.00         Postage and Freight       20,000.00         Miscellaneous Income       10,000.00
*Cost of Sales
Operating Expenses Administrative Division
Salaries       21,580.00         Housing Allowances       4,380.00         Travel       4,000.00         Supplies       1,000.00         Promotion       2,000.00
Editorial Division     32,960.00       Salaries     43,160.00       Housing Allowances     3,480.00       Travel     2,000.00       Supplies     2,000.00       Curriculum Development     2,000.00       Writers' Fees     13,300.00       65,940.00
Bookstore Division       05,940.00         Salaries       8,840.00         Supplies       1,000.00         Rent       8,400.00         Maintenance       500.00         Telephone and Telegraph      600.00         19,340.00
Bookkeeping Division       19,340,00         Salaries       24,960.00         Housing Allowance       1,800.00         Travel       1,000.00         Supplies       8,000.00         Equipment Rental       10,200.00         45,960.00

DEPARTMENT
Y SCHOOL I
/ SUNDA
- REPORTS
65

Order Division
Salaries
Supplies
Equipment Rental
Shipping Division
Salaries
Truck Expense
Supplies
Travel
Miscellaneous Expense
34,940.00
Building and Maintenance
Salaries       .17,576.00         Supplies       .2,500.00
Building Maintenance
Utilities
Insurance
Equipment Rental
Miscellaneous Expense
Debt Retirement
66 476 00
General Expenses 66,476.00
General Expenses Travel - Board
General Expenses Travel - Board
General Expenses         3,000.00           Travel - Board         1,000.00           Miscellaneous Travel         1,000.00           Telephone and Telegraph         3,000.00
General Expenses         3,000.00           Travel - Board         1,000.00           Miscellaneous Travel         1,000.00           Telephone and Telegraph         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Supplies         1,000.00
General Expenses         3,000.00           Travel - Board         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Travel         1,000.00           Telephone and Telegraph         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Supplies         1,000.00           Advertisement         4,000.00           Legal and Auditing         3,500.00
General Expenses         3,000.00           Travel - Board         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Travel         1,000.00           Telephone and Telegraph         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Supplies         1,000.00           Advertisement         4,000.00           Legal and Auditing         3,500.00           Employees' Retirement Fund         6,000.00
General Expenses         3,000.00           Travel - Board         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Travel         1,000.00           Telephone and Telegraph         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Supplies         1,000.00           Advertisement         4,000.00           Legal and Auditing         3,500.00           Employees' Retirement Fund         6,000.00           Employees' Life Insurance         2,000.00
General Expenses         3,000.00           Travel - Board         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Travel         1,000.00           Telephone and Telegraph         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Supplies         1,000.00           Advertisement         4,000.00           Legal and Auditing         3,500.00           Employees' Retirement Fund         6,000.00           Employees' Life Insurance         2,000.00           Employees' Group Insurance         8,000.00
General Expenses         3,000.00           Travel - Board         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Travel         1,000.00           Telephone and Telegraph         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Supplies         1,000.00           Advertisement         4,000.00           Legal and Auditing         3,500.00           Employees' Retirement Fund         6,000.00           Employees' Life Insurance         2,000.00           Employees' Group Insurance         8,000.00           Employers' Share of FICA         10,000.00
General Expenses         3,000.00           Travel - Board         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Travel         1,000.00           Telephone and Telegraph         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Supplies         1,000.00           Advertisement         4,000.00           Legal and Auditing         3,500.00           Employees' Retirement Fund         6,000.00           Employees' Life Insurance         2,000.00           Employees' Group Insurance         8,000.00           Employers' Share of FICA         10,000.00           Automobile Repairs         1,000.00
General Expenses         3,000.00           Travel - Board         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Travel         1,000.00           Telephone and Telegraph         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Supplies         1,000.00           Advertisement         4,000.00           Legal and Auditing         3,500.00           Employees' Retirement Fund         6,000.00           Employees' Life Insurance         2,000.00           Employees' Group Insurance         8,000.00           Employers' Share of FICA         10,000.00           Automobile Repairs         1,000.00           Automobile Lease         5,000.00
General Expenses         3,000.00           Travel - Board         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Travel         1,000.00           Telephone and Telegraph         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Supplies         1,000.00           Advertisement         4,000.00           Legal and Auditing         3,500.00           Employees' Retirement Fund         6,000.00           Employees' Life Insurance         2,000.00           Employees' Group Insurance         8,000.00           Employers' Share of FICA         10,000.00           Automobile Repairs         1,000.00           Automobile Lease         5,000.00           Additions to Fixed Assets         5,000.00           Doubtful Accounts Receivable         2,000.00
General Expenses         3,000.00           Travel - Board         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Travel         1,000.00           Telephone and Telegraph         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Supplies         1,000.00           Advertisement         4,000.00           Legal and Auditing         3,500.00           Employees' Retirement Fund         6,000.00           Employees' Life Insurance         2,000.00           Employees' Group Insurance         8,000.00           Employers' Share of FICA         10,000.00           Automobile Repairs         1,000.00           Automobile Lease         5,000.00           Additions to Fixed Assets         5,000.00           Doubtful Accounts Receivable         2,000.00           Postage and Freight         20,000.00
General Expenses         3,000.00           Travel - Board         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Travel         1,000.00           Telephone and Telegraph         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Supplies         1,000.00           Advertisement         4,000.00           Legal and Auditing         3,500.00           Employees' Retirement Fund         6,000.00           Employees' Life Insurance         2,000.00           Employers' Group Insurance         8,000.00           Employers' Share of FICA         10,000.00           Automobile Repairs         1,000.00           Automobile Lease         5,000.00           Additions to Fixed Assets         5,000.00           Doubtful Accounts Receivable         2,000.00           Postage and Freight         20,000.00           Gifts and Contributions         500.00
General Expenses         3,000.00           Travel - Board         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Travel         1,000.00           Telephone and Telegraph         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Supplies         1,000.00           Advertisement         4,000.00           Legal and Auditing         3,500.00           Employees' Retirement Fund         6,000.00           Employees' Life Insurance         2,000.00           Employers' Share of FICA         10,000.00           Automobile Repairs         1,000.00           Automobile Lease         5,000.00           Additions to Fixed Assets         5,000.00           Doubtful Accounts Receivable         2,000.00           Postage and Freight         20,000.00           Gifts and Contributions         500.00           Miscellaneous Expense         1,000.00
General Expenses         3,000.00           Travel - Board         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Travel         1,000.00           Telephone and Telegraph         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Supplies         1,000.00           Advertisement         4,000.00           Legal and Auditing         3,500.00           Employees' Retirement Fund         6,000.00           Employees' Life Insurance         2,000.00           Employers' Group Insurance         8,000.00           Employers' Share of FICA         10,000.00           Automobile Repairs         1,000.00           Automobile Lease         5,000.00           Additions to Fixed Assets         5,000.00           Doubtful Accounts Receivable         2,000.00           Postage and Freight         20,000.00           Gifts and Contributions         500.00           Miscellaneous Expense         1,000.00           76,000.00
General Expenses         3,000.00           Travel - Board         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Travel         1,000.00           Telephone and Telegraph         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Supplies         1,000.00           Advertisement         4,000.00           Legal and Auditing         3,500.00           Employees' Retirement Fund         6,000.00           Employees' Group Insurance         2,000.00           Employers' Share of FICA         10,000.00           Automobile Repairs         1,000.00           Automobile Lease         5,000.00           Additions to Fixed Assets         5,000.00           Doubtful Accounts Receivable         2,000.00           Postage and Freight         20,000.00           Gifts and Contributions         500.00           Miscellaneous Expense         1,000.00           Total Operating Expenses         361,816.00
General Expenses         3,000.00           Travel - Board         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Travel         1,000.00           Telephone and Telegraph         3,000.00           Miscellaneous Supplies         1,000.00           Advertisement         4,000.00           Legal and Auditing         3,500.00           Employees' Retirement Fund         6,000.00           Employees' Life Insurance         2,000.00           Employers' Group Insurance         8,000.00           Employers' Share of FICA         10,000.00           Automobile Repairs         1,000.00           Automobile Lease         5,000.00           Additions to Fixed Assets         5,000.00           Doubtful Accounts Receivable         2,000.00           Postage and Freight         20,000.00           Gifts and Contributions         500.00           Miscellaneous Expense         1,000.00           76,000.00

<sup>\*</sup>Includes Printing Division Salaries

#### THE LAYMAN'S BOARD REPORT

The National Layman's Board has had a year of ever increasing blessings. At the National Convention a year ago in Nashville, the board realized that they had only one direction in which to go, and that direction was forward. With much prayer and devotion, plans were made, their purposes were defined, and goals were set.

The Lord's will was sought and the board moved forward in this direction. Emphasis on "Stewardship" has been chosen as the purpose of the Master's Men organization and the goal is total commitment of the laymen in the Free Will Baptist denomination. Stewardship is defined as more than just the giving of one's means, but also total commitment of one's time, talent, calling, influence, personality, and opportunity for the Lord Jesus Christ. When there is total commitment there will be total involvement.

It is to each pastor's advantage to have their laymen totally committed and involved in the work of the Master.

The Word of God says in Exodus 17:12: "But Moses' hands were heavy;...and Aaron and Hur stayed up his hands, the one on the one side, and the other on the other side;...."

In these days of permissiveness and lusts of the flesh and contentions of all kinds, the pastor needs his hands steadied and held up by dedicated and totally involved laymen. Only so long as laymen are strong can we as a denomination go forth in the power of God and defeat His enemies.

One means of meeting the goals set forth is the suggestion that every church in the denomination honor their laymen on Layman's Day, October 8, 1972. It is on this day, or at least one Sunday during the month of October that churches are asked to designate a Sunday when the laymen will have complete charge of the worship services for the day.

A goal of \$2,000 has been set by the board, to be reached in Layman Day offerings, by challenging each Master's Men chapter to support the work of promoting their organization at the national level. This would only constitute a \$30 offering from each active Master's Men chapter.

We desire your continued prayers and support in the future.

Kenneth Lane, Chairman

#### FINANCIAL STATEMENT

## CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS Year ended December 31, 1971

Cash Balance, January 1, 1971       .867.56         Receipts       .4,892.29         Total       .5,759.85
Disbursements 4.077.05
Payroll (including taxes)
Printing,1,328.48
Supplies
Postage
Rent278.16
Auditing
Telephone
Advertising
Total Disbursements
Cash Balance, December 31, 1971
Deposited in First American National Bank       1,295.16         Checking       490.66         Savings       1,785.82

#### **Budget - 1973**

#### Income

Chapter Renewals

Expenses
Salaries\$1,800.00
Printing
Supplies
Postage
Telephone
Advertising (Contact)
Auditing
Rent
\$5,400,00

.1,500.00

\$5,400.00

300.00

#### REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE OFFICE

Something wonderful and exciting is happening among Free Will Baptists. Sparked by an upsurge of evangelism, we are seeing unprecendented growth. The mounting wave of attendance indicates our churches are having an effective evangelistic outreach.

In the wake of spiraling attendance, numerous churches are experiencing new life. Possessed with a new vision, a new enthusiasm, and a new passion for souls churches are reaching people with new confidence. Churches are announcing plans to expand their facilities and to enlarge their programs to include such ministries as the day care centers and Christian schools.

A new spirit of cooperation and partnership is being manifested on every level of denominational work. It appears that a new day has dawned as we sense the hand of the Lord upon our work in a greater degree than ever before. Progress on the local, district and state level has resulted in a greater advance of the National Association ministries. Remarkable gains are reflected in the growth of Free Will Baptist Bible College and the mission departments. Reports also reveal a sizeable increase and effective ministry of the other departments.

The Executive Office particularly has had an exceptionally good year. Eugene Workman assumed the role of administrative assistant and editorial duties last September. The addition of his services has been a tremendous help in expediting the office work. His commendable job in editing CONTACT is especially obvious. Because of improved quality and design, the appeal of the magazine is more widespread. Greater interest has been generated among the readership.

The Church Family Plan remains the most effective means for increasing CONTACT subscriptions. Information on how to enroll each member on the family plan can be obtained from the Executive booth in the display area. A special bonus is being offered during the convention for those who subscribe individually or renew their subscription. A copy of the recently-published "Free Will Baptist Church Directory" will be given free for each two years' subscription or renewal. A new addition of the Treatise will be given for a one year subscription or renewal. The subscription rate is \$3.00 a year.

The difficult task of obtaining correct information in order to compile the Church Directory reveals the urgent need of more efficient record keeping on the district and state level. Several state directories are being compiled. We recommend that all states follow this procedure and that the names of all churches, pastors and clerks with addresses be printed in the minutes if not separately. We also request that at least two copies be mailed to the Executive Office.

Along with record giving to other departments, receipts to the Cooperative Plan increased by eleven per cent last year. It is encouraging to see this trend continue because this systematic method of giving provides basic support particularly for the smaller departments. Without this regular monthly support, the operation of several departments would be affected. Lack of total support for all our national ministries is a matter of real concern. Churches that do not give at all, or else fail to include all the national departments in their direct giving, place an unfair share of support on those who give cooperatively.

A film strip entitled "MORE THAN BRICK AND MORTAR" has been produced by the Executive Office. The film is designed to present the overall ministries of the National Association and the work of the Executive Office in relationship to the nature of the local church. Bookings for this film can be made at the Executive Office booth or it can be ordered directly from the Executive Office, P. O. Box 1088, Nashville, Tennessee 37202.

More than half of my time has been spent on the field promoting the total program of the National Association, conducting conferences, participating in various associational meetings and individual church services.

We are grateful for God's favor upon our denominational outreach. Evangelism as a priority seems to be a common denominator of those churches which are growing the fastest. The commitment of the denomination as a whole to evangelism is one of the major factors for God's blessings. Aggressive, pace-setting pastoral leadership is another reason for the success of growing churches. A batter trained and more involved laity is an important

element of growth. Above all, I believe God is pleased to honor our efforts because spiritual dynamics are taken seriously. Prayer and faithful Bible teaching and preaching is producing results. Our prople are responding because they are being continually confronted with a sense of divine responsibility. Continued watchfulness is necessary to preserve our fundamental heritage. A movement does not go liberal overnight. A process of conditioning precedes compromise. Therefore, it is our sincere desire to continue strengthening the spiritual life of our denomination in order that we may build together on a sure foundation. Rufus Coffey, Executive Secretary

#### FINANCIAL STATEMENT

#### OPERATING FUND — BALANCE SHEET December 31, 1971

#### **ASSETS**

Cash - General       .173.30         - Contact Magazine       .605.08         - Special Projects       .10,879.71         Accounts receivable - General       .1,864.96         - Contact magazine       .31.48         - Special projects       .8,400.00         Bonds          Airlines deposit          Total Assets	<u>. , .425.00</u>	
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE		
Liabilities Accounts payable - General	413.82 <u>32,965,71</u>	
EQUIPMENT FUND - BALA	ANCE SHEET	

#### **ASSETS**

8 108 68

Office furniture and equipment	8,108.68
Automobile	2.500.00
Total Assets	, . , <u>10,608,68</u>
Fund Balance	<u>10,608.68</u>

# 70 - REPORTS / EXECUTIVE OFFICE

# INCOME AND OPERATING FUND BALANCE Year ended December 31, 1971

General Income
Cooperative Plan
Gifts
Total Income
Expenses
Accounting and auditing
Contributions
Equipment purchased
Executive Committee-travel
Insurance-general
Insurance and retirement-
employees
Miscellaneous
Office equipment maintenance
Office space rental
Office supplies and printing2.207.77
Payroll taxes
Postage
Promotion
Salaries
Housing allowances3,270.00
Telephone and telegraph
Travel
Transfer to Contact Magazine
Total Expenses
Net (Loss)
"Contact" Magazine
Income
Sale of "Contact"
Less cost of "Contact"
Net Income
Special Projects
Income
Sale of hymnals, treatise, etc
Less cost of sales
Interest on savings
Less N.A.E. Study Committee
expense
Net Income
Net Income-Total
Fund Balance, January 1, 1971
Fund Balance, December 31, 1971
. and Salance, Sectinger 51, 1971

#### **COOPERATIVE PLAN**

#### CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS Year ended December 31, 1971

Receipts	
Alabama	
Arizona	
Arkansas	
California	
Colorado	
Florida	
Georgia	
Idaho	
Illinois	
Kansas	
Kentucky	
Michigan	
Minnesota	
Mississippi	533.90
Missouri	
New Mexico	
North Carolina	
Ohio	
Oklahoma	
Tennessee	
Texas	
Virginia	
Washington and Oregon (Northwest Association)	
West Virginia	
Total Receipts	<u>118,613.33</u>

	Designated	<u>Undesignated</u>	<u>Total</u>
Disbursements			
Executive Department	6,145.36	34,125.40	40,270.76
Foreign Mission Board	9,781.84	15,383.37	25,165.21 22.022.58
Bible College	7,089.14	14,933.44	22,022.50
Board	5,922.11	8,826.54	14,748.65
Church Training Service	2,225.75	5,150.58	7,376.33
Board of Retirement and Insurance	1,017.76	4,120.35 2,575.35	5,138.11 3,074.54
Commission on			
Theological Liberalism	<u> 302.04</u>	<u>515.11</u>	817.15
Total Disbursements	32,983.19	<u>85,630.14</u>	<u>118,613.33</u>

#### **PLANT FUND**

### BALANCE SHEET (CASH BASIS) December 31, 1971

	December 31, 1371
١	ASSETS  Cash
	LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE  Liabilities  Note payable - bank
	CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS  Year ended December 31, 1971
	Cash balance, January 1, 1971       536.31         Receipts       Rent       31,333.15         Telephone       12,416.17         Hospitalization insurance       11,523.90         Gasoline sales       2,802.28         Miscellaneous       441.49         Reimbursement by other departments       294.43         Bank loan       1,350.00         Executive Department Loan       1,250.00       61,411.42         Total to be accounted for       61,947.73
	Disbursements       Building equipment purchased       1,455.00         Tractor and mower purchased       1,329.00         General supplies       1,079.71         Hospitalization insurance       11,523.90         Insurance-general       334.00         Interest on bank loan       49.50         Janitor service       3,786.74         Machine maintenance       421.40         Mail truck expense       490.62         Mail room expense       128.36         Mortgage payments       807.56         Mortgage payments       14,763.00         Office supplies       320.56         Payroll taxes       150.56         Salaries       5,351.81         Telephone       12,418.20         Utilities       4,478.25         Bulk gasoline purchases       2,995.28         Total Disbursements       61,883.45         Cash balance, December 31, 1971       64,28
; (	asn balance, December 31, 19/1

72 - REPORTS / EXECUTIVE OFFICE

### **BUILDING FUND**

### CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS Year ended December 31, 1971

Cash balance, January 1, 197110	0.57
Receipts	
Received from departments to apply	
on bank loan	
Convention special offering	01.86
Total to be accounted for	32.43
Disbursements	
Miscellaneous	
Interest expense	
Paid on bank loan	
Total Disbursements	02.43
Cash balance, December 31, 1971	

Account was closed on November 23, 1971.

### **CONVENTION FUND**

### CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS Year ended December 31, 1971

Cash balance, January 1, 1971
Offerings
Church fees
State fees
Booths
Pastors' dinner
Tennessee State gifts
Dishursements
Auditorium rent and signs
Badges and registration cards
Booths expense
Convention office, publicity and
advertising
Convention personnel luncheons
Equipment rentals
Honorariums
Pastors' dinner
Programs and song sheets
Travel expense
Minutes - 1971 Convention
Miscellaneous
Total Disbursements
Cash balance, December 31, 1971

## 74 - REPORTS / EXECUTIVE OFFICE

### **EXECUTIVE OFFICE BUDGET - 1973**

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES:
Office rental and remodeling\$ 4,480.00
Office supplies
Equipment purchase and maintenance
Telephone
Postage
Salaries
Benefits
Social Security
General Insurance
Promotion
Travel Expenses
"Contact" Subsidy
Executive Committee travel
Accounting and Auditing800.00
Contingency Fund
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
ANTICIPATED INCOME:
Cooperative Plan\$42,000.00
Designated Gifts and Honorariums
Film Rental
Sale of Hymnals, Treatise, Church Directory
Interest on Bonds
TOTAL INCOME\$55,173.00

# 75 - REPORTS / WOMAN'S NATIONAL AUXILIARY CONVENTION

Cleo Pursell, Executive Secretary

### THE WOMAN'S NATIONAL AUXILIARY CONVENTION REPORT

The 37th annual meeting of the Woman's National Auxiliary Convention was held July 11, 1972. Total registration was 725 with 19 states, 2 districts, and 10 local auxiliaries representing.  Enrollment at beginning of Convention Year
Present enrollment
Total receipts for the year
Student loan fund receipts
Cash gifts to Missions:
Foreign Missions 36,663.76 Home Missions 16,792.07 Free Will Baptist Bible College 3,890.61 Other Gifts for various missionary objectives 4,745.21 \$62,091.65
Cash Gifts to Missions sent direct:
Foreign Missions       9,955.02         Home Missions       5,373.04         Bible Colleges       1,933.57         Children's Homes       1 214.86

3.305.02
Home Missions
Bible Colleges
Children's Homes
Youth Camps
State Missions
\$23,151.24

### 

	\$14,502.23
Total Gifts to Missions and Missionary Objectives	\$105.305.34

### CONVENTION REPORTS

### The Report Of The Committee On Committees

### Resolution Committee:

Edward Johns, California, Chairman Paul Thompson, Ohio Sam Truett, South Carolina Roger Harwell, Missouri Ronald Creech, North Carolina

### Nominating Committee:

James Murray, Oklahoma, Chairman Wade Jernigan, California Richard Presnell, Ohio Van Dale Hudson, Mississippi Robert Picirilli, Tennessee

### Report Of The Credentials Committee

We the Credentials Committee have examined the letters from the various state associations, district associations, and local churches, find the letters in order as follows:

- 1. From the state associations having the right to five delegates each, Alabama, Arkansas, California, Florida, Georgia, Illinois. Indiana, Kansas, Kentucky, Maryland, Michigan, Mississippi, Missouri, New Mexico, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, and West Virginia:
- 2. From the following district associations having the right to three delegates each, First Arizona Association, Northwestern Association, and Mexico Association:
- 3. From the following local churches reporting directly to this body, having the right to one delegate each, Waipahu Church, Hawaii; Riverview Church, Bettendorf, Iowa; the First Church, Torrington, Wyoming; and the First Church, Denver, Colorado:
- 4. We recommend that the delegates from these bodies be seated. We further recommend that all other delegates, properly registered from local churches comprising the above associations, be seated also.

Respectfully submitted, Lester Horton, chairman

### Report Of The Nominating Committee

The Nominating Committee submits the following nominations: General Board Members:

New Mexico to replace M. B. Lunsford, B. Gartman:

North Carolina to replace Ronald Creech, Ronald Creech;

Northeast Association to replace John DePriest, Mack Owens:

Northwest Association to replace Lloyd Plunkett, Milan Ruble; Ohio to replace James Hayes, Clarence Newman;

Oklahoma to replace Lonnie DaVoult, Homer Young:

South Carolina to replace Paul Reed, Norwood Gibson;

Tennessee to replace Don Sexton, Clarence Phillips;

Texas to replace Bobby Ferguson, Lionel Cooksey; Virginia to replace Winford Floyd, Fred Green; West Virginia to replace William Samms, Carl Valance;

Kansas to replace Robert Sharry, Trymon Messer;

Mexico to replace Arthur Billows, Jerry Barron;

Bible College Trustees:

Owen Thomas, North Carolina to be replaced by Owen Thomas, North Carolina, or Carlton Langston, South Carolina.

William Mishler, Illinois, to be replaced by Hobart Ashby, Ohio, or William Mishler, Illinois. Ben Scott, Arkansas, to be replaced by Ben Scott, Arkansas, or Bobby Ferguson, Texas.

Church Training Service:

Russell Spurgeon, Missouri, to be replaced by James Walden, Alabama, or Grover Terry, Kansas.

Foreign Missions:

Raymond Riggs to be replaced by Raymond Riggs, Michigan, or Carl Valance, West Virginia.

Home Missions and Church Extension:

H. Z. Cox, Texas, to be replaced by James McAlister, Missouri, or Lewis Perry, Washington.

Laymen's Board:

T. C. Mitchell, Florida, to be replaced by Jack Forlines, North Carolina, or Kenneth Cade, Indiana.

Retirement and Insurance:

Tom Malone, Alabama, to be replaced by Wingate Hansley, Florida, or Ronald Niebruegge, North Carolina.

Sunday School Board:

G. C. Lee, Tennessee, to be replaced by G. C. Lee, or Claudie Hames, California.

William Hill, Michigan, to be replaced by Bob Followwill, Arkansas, or Paul Thompson,
Ohio.

National Offices Trustees:

J. B. Redding, Tennessee, to be replaced by Glen Vann or Jack Nicholson, Tennessee.

Theological Liberalism Commission:

Leroy Forlines to be replaced by Leroy Forlines, Tennessee, or Jack Williams, California.

Historical Commission:

Ronald Creech, North Carolina, to be replaced by Ronald Creech, N.C., or Damon Dodd, Georgia.

Assistant Clerk:

Jerry Dudley, Oklahoma, to be replaced by Lloyd Plunkett, Washington, or Carl Young, California.

Clerk

Waldo Young, Oklahoma, to be replaced by Jerry Dudley, Oklahoma, or Bonnie Hughes Tennessee.

Assistant Moderator:

Bobby Jackson, North Carolina, to be replaced by Bobby Jackson, or Gene Norris, Illinois.

Moderator:

J. D. O'Donnell, Missouri, to be replaced by J. D. O'Donnell, Missouri, or Bailey Thompson, Oklahoma.

### Commission On Theological Liberalism Report

The Commission on Theological Liberalism met March 14, 1972, at Free Will Baptist Bible College. In this meeting we discussed ways we can most effectively serve the denomination. The Commission has understood its area of concern to extend to any area of theological thought that either denies or endangers the basic doctrines of the faith, or that which may be termed as heresy. In the opinion of the Commission the greatest immediate threat that the members of our denomination face comes from the attack made by cult movements. In keeping with this observation, the Commission has secured a booth at the National Association. The booth is designed to acquaint people with literature that is available which explains and refutes the theology of cult movements. A limited number of articles are available at the booth for free distribution.

This Commission has used the following guidelines in determining its responsibilities. (1) Liberalism is defined in a broad sense so as to include every form of theological error that denies all or part of the doctrines that are considered as essential to orthodox or conservative christianity, or in other words that which may be termed "heresy." (2) We have concerned ourselves not only with that which may be called heresy, but that which may lead to heresy or pose a threat to basic Christian doctrine. (3) We have guarded against promoting personal interests that may not be common interests in the denomination. (4) We have sought to fulfill our responsibilities in such a manner that we would avoid becoming involved in matters that would create division among our people. (5) We have avoided everything that would give us the appearance of being a "watch-dog" commission. (6) We have avoided involvements that would not be justified by the purpose of our commission.

In the opinion of the commission, the greatest threat, in the area of our concern, that faces the Free Will Baptists comes from the cult movements. In keeping with this observation, we have a booth at this year's convention. At the booth, you will find a few free materials on cults. One of these, the "Herbert W. Armstrong Heresy Refuted," by Leroy Forlines, was prepared for the commission. There are also some materials for sale at the booth that will be found helpful in preparing one's defense against the cults.

The commission is planning to secure a booth at next years national association. At this booth we plan to give attention to the threats of evolution and spiritism.

Leroy Forlines, Chairman

### FINANCIAL REPORT

Balance in treasury, June 1, 1971
Cooperative Plan of Support
TOTAL INCOME AND BALANCE
EXPENDITURES
Digest of Reports
Board Travel
Booth for National
Pamphlets
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
BALANCE ON HAND, JUNE 1, 1972

### Report Of The General Board

The General Board of the National Association met July 11, and as a result of this meeting we offer the following report:

- 1. We have heard the reports of the CTS Department, the Executive Department, the Sunday School Department, the Foreign Missions Department, the Home Missions and Church Extension Department, the Layman's Board, Free Will Baptist Bible College, and the Department of Retirement and Insurance, and recommend them, along with their budgets, for your hearing and adoption as each is presented.
- 2. We recommend the Treatise be amended as follows:

That the present paragraph under Article VIII, page 73, become section 1, and the following statement become section 2.

The Church Covenant, the Statement of Faith of Free Will Baptists, and the Articles of Faith of Free Will Baptists as given in this Treatise may be amended or altered at any regular session of the national association by a two thirds vote of the members present, and voting provided proposed amendment or alteration has been presented to the body in writing one annual session in advance.

- 3. We recommend that Section 32 of the By Laws, page 84 of the Treatise, be amended to read 10¢ per mile instead of 8¢ per mile.
- 4. A new letter form is to be presented to the National Association. We recommend its adoption, and that the national association urge its use on all levels of our denominational work.
- 5. We heard the report of the committee to study the denomination's relationship with the National Association of Evangelicals, and recommend its adoption by this body.
- We recommend that the 1975 session of the National Convention be held in Dayton, Ohio.

### **NAE Study Committee Report**

WHEREAS the denomination has not demonstrated adequate financial support of the National Association of Evangelicals, and

WHEREAS there are individuals and churches in the denomination who object to our affiliation with the National Assocciation of Evangelicals, and

WHEREAS it is inconsistent with the autonomy of the local church to be forced into membership in an extra-denominational body by any action of the national association, and

WHEREAS churches and individuals can join the National Association of Evangelicals, whether or not the denomination is a member:

BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS and its subsidiaries terminate its relation as an associate of the National Association of Evangelicals.

Malcolm Fry, Chairman, Dr. J. D. O'Donnell, Rufus Coffey, Homer Willis, Dale Burden, Randy Cox, Clarence Phillips, Lonnie Palmer, Norwood Gibson, Jerry Ballard, Joe Hurst, Jerry Rhoades, Sam Johnson

### The Historical Commission Report

The Free Will Baptist denomination has a rich heritage. We need to preserve it.
We are thrilled that Bill Davidson has just prepared a history of Free Will Baptists as a

We are thrilled that Bill Davidson has just prepared a history of Free Will Baptists as a requirement for his Doctorate at the New Orleans Baptist Theological Seminary.

We are very pleased that Dr. Picirilli and Miss Wisehart are doing the research for a history of Free Will Baptists. Please cooperate with them when they ask your help.

Please send minutes, books, treatises, photographs, printed sermons, etc., to the Free Will Baptist Historical Commission, 3606 West End Ave., Nashville, Tennessee.

Ronald Creech, Chairman

### RESOLUTIONS

### **ALCOHOLISM**

 WHEREAS, alcoholism presents a major health hazard to the people of the United States, and

WHEREAS, the major cause of highway accidents is a direct result from drinking drivers, and

WHEREAS, alcohol is one of the most widely used depressants in the nation, and

WHEREAS, the public is generally unaware that alcohol is a dangerous drug, and

WHEREAS, Senator Harold Hughes of Iowa, has stated, after a year of hearing on a bill to establish a sweeping federal program to combat drug abuse, that alcohol "does far more damage than all the rest of the drugs put together," and

WHEREAS, there are an estimated nine million alcoholics, plus another fifteen million families who are adversely affected by the scourge of alcoholism, and

WHEREAS, most alcoholics acquire their disease through social drinking, and

WHEREAS, the public is generally uninformed that alcoholism is a disease of the soul which the Bible calls sin, and

WHEREAS, a renewed effort is being made by many organizations to call attention to the evils and dangers of alcohol, therefore

BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS

- Request our churches to teach and preach more on the sin and evil of alcoholic beverages.
- Encourage each member to become individually involved in every community effort to present objective factual information concerning the detrimental effects of this evil.
- 3. Offer our commendation to each radio and television station that carries as a public service information regarding the problem of alcohol.

### APPRECIATION FOR HOSPITALITY

II. BE IT RESOLVED that the National Association of Free Will Baptists express its sincere gratitude to the Texas State Association for the excellent provisions made for this convention.

### CHARISMATIC MOVEMENT

III. BE IT RESOLVED that this body affirm that the so-called charismatic doctrine of speaking in tongues or languages as essential evidence of a special experience with the Holy Spirit required for all Christians before they can be considered as having the fullness of the Holy Spirit, is contrary to the doctrine of the Bible and Original Free Will Baptists.

### LAYMEN REPRESENTATION

IV. WHEREAS, there are boards within the National Association which have no layman representation, and

WHEREAS, it would be an encouragement to laymen to have greater responsibility through participation,

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the nominating committee beginning with the

1973 session of the National Association be requested to give consideration to the nomination of at least one layman to the membership of each board; and that a copy of this resolution be placed in the hands of the nominating committee for each year here after.

### CAPITAL PUNISHMENT

- V. WHEREAS, there is an alarming rise of crime in America today, and
  WHEREAS, the courts of our land exhibit more concern for law violators the
  - WHEREAS, the courts of our land exhibit more concern for law-violators than those victimized by them, and
  - WHEREAS, the Supreme Court has ruled capital punishment to be unconstitutional, and
  - WHEREAS, the Bible clearly states the death penalty for the crime of murder, and WHEREAS, God instituted capital punishment among His people in the Old Testament as a punishment for and deterent to crime

### BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED:

- 1. That the National Association of Free Will Baptists voice its support for any efforts to reinstate capital punishment as a deterent to and punishment for crime.
- And that copies of this resolution be sent to our President, the leaders of the House and Senate, Chief-Justice Burger, the chairman of the Republican National Committee the chairman of the Democratic Party, the nominees of the political parties, and the news media.

### **EVANGELISTIC CHALLENGE**

- VI. WHEREAS, the Free Will Baptist denomination has been historically known as an evangelistic group, and
  - WHEREAS, both Brother Lonnie Graves and Brother Russell Anderson have challenged us in their messages to double the attendance in our churches this next year, and WHEREAS, Dr. Ravenhill has reminded us again that we must have God's annointing to

### do God's work,

- THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT:
- We implore God for His power, annointing and blessings on our churches, pastors, teachers, and workers like never before.
- That we accept this challenge and urge all our churches to work hard to double their attendance next year through the preaching of the Word of God, winning of souls, and baptizing the believers.

### 82 - REPORTS / CONVENTION

### **Budget Committee Report**

A combined total budget of \$3,391,030.00 has been adopted by this body for the various national ministries in 1973.

Executive
C.T.S
Executive Church Bonds
Retirement & Insurance
Layman's Board
Foreign Mission Board
Home Mission Board
FWB Bible College
Sunday School Department
Total

We recommend that denominational giving through the Cooperative Plan be allocated to the various ministries on the following basis.

1. Executive Office Budget

(portion needed above gifts received directly)

Of the amount remaining the following departments will receive the percentage designated:

Church Training Service	)%
Retirement and Insurance Board8	3%
Layman's Board	%
Commission on Theological Liberalism	%

3. The remaining 76% will be divided with the Free Will Baptist Bible College, Foreign Missions, and Home Missions and Church Extension on a formula based upon the percentage of annual expenditures averaged with those of an equal amount of 33 1/3 percent.



Totals	Wyoming	West Virginia	Virginia	Texas	Tennessee	South Carolina	Oklahoma	Ohio	N.W. Assoc.	N.E. Assoc.	North Carolina	New Mexico	Missouri	Mississippi	Minnesota	Michigan	Mexico	Maryland	Kentucky	Kansas	lowa	Indiana	Illinois	Idaho	Hawaii	Georgia	Florida	Colorado	California	Arkansas	Arizona	Alabama	
164 2		16	5	5	თ	4	19	10	-1		8	2	11	ω	_	5		ω	9	2	L	ω	2	1	_	8	5		6	15	1	13	Associations
250	_	172	99	63	163	80	232	127	8	7	160	7	144	49		44	2	14	124	11		24	46	5		127	72	1	77	205	5	178	Churches
198,274	29	8,291	7,407	4,090	20,422	9,282	19,622	9,113	354	328	19,950	401	13,078	4,420	28	5,634	324	1,157	12,291	770	100	1,626	4,225	210	119	11,478	5,581	65	4,696	14,671	472	18,040	Membership
3,794		383	202	63	257	113	420	254	12	6	260	11	236	51		89		32	255	10		49	84	8	_	125	102	1	143	334	7	283	Ordained Ministers
546	1	22	18	6	88	13	66	34		2	38		40	_1		16		7	33	2		6	10	1	2	21	18	2	46		2	51	Licensed Ministers
6,554		355	245	140	622	260	674	295	13	6	557	10	333	288		122		36	258	19	3	62	153	13		507	202	4	205	471	13	688	Ordained Deacons
152,216	25	7,190	7,605	3,015	15,392	8,564	15,891	11,511	521	324	18,600	195	9,455	2,586	40	5,737	500			1,063	130	2,205	3,437	191	130	6,642	4,089	94	4,239	10,940	430	11,475	Sunday School Enrollment
76,677	20	6,000		2,091	11,736	8,560	3,879	9,587		266	14,400		8,064		30	3,716		1,085	5,183	937	86	1,622	2,894	168	125		3,381	68	3,533	8,000	372	8,999	Sunday School Average
32,733		135	1,312	987	4,913	2,081		1,222	none	86	3,740		2,026	800		657			221	215			706	25	55	3,421	1,409	42	1,358	3,288		4,034	Church Training Service Enrollment
15,690		65		636	3,749	57	840	832		71	3,120		4,464			509		150	153	195	33	45	662	18	ឌ		1,183	25	1,152	2,500	167	3,170	Church Training Service Average
9,210	6	389	197	325	1,548	876		280	46	9	751	25	590	143	4	497	50		131	101		206	235		26	703	352		400	500		850	W.N.A.C. Enrollment
3,458		253		222	8	14		148		8	700		13		4				121	69	6	124	165		22		284		350	375	42	524	W.N.A.C. Average Attendance
2,107		25	36	24	276	475		78	none		225		119					5	19	16	10	22	30		13	245	91	10	61	128		199	Master's Men Average Attendance
684		20			2	8		47			150		11					4		14	7	10	17		11		65	ភ	50	100	19	144	Master's Men Enrollment
12,867,512.47	1,170.16	168,924.11	465,207.09	397,690.22	1,362,621.17	787,803.62	1,124,864.96	933,826.09	43,855.09	28,348.83	1,448,724.16	45,588.82	766,089.35	248,271.78	2,965.00	661,544.44		92,226.13	271,858.91	110,074.16	19,746.33	117,902.39	357,222.82	8,436.39	26,224.65	795,358.43	391,126.14	14,432.62	575,236.00	611,694.00	54,419.00	\$934,059.61	Spent For Local Causes
1,718,787.46	61.76	78,789.85	33,794.08	39,553.58	97,079.40	116,432.88	219,155.17	63,968.25	3,852.89	5,021.69	222,738.13	2,408.53	138,442.71	30,867.12	1,700.00	112,545.16		4,939.96	25,266.17	17,691.68	534.01	16,583.21	55,367.48	1,216.07	1,203.08	109,105.77	54,717.61	2,551.12	102,323.00	58,175.00	8,969.00	\$93,733.10	Spent For Outside Causes
58,963,635.77	10,000.00	1,876,950.00	2,836,888.00	1,447,200.00	5,828,896.16	2,642,241.30	5,818,000.00	4,053,000.00	239,500.00	123,400.00	5,665,350.00	152,000.00	3,736,330.70	1,134,200.00	20,000.00	3,599,700.00		775,000.00	1,783,650.00	422,400.00	80,000.00	677,500.00	1,200,000.00	135,500.00	250,000.00	3,691,110.50	1,753,300.00	00.000,00	2,087,871.00	2,585,770.00	237,000.00	\$4,040,878.11	Value of Church Property
7,116,619.70 2,141,359.65	7,000.00	П		150,000.00	_		J	127,000.00			1,1					191,030.00		40,000.00	Г	33,900.00		82,500.00	214,000.00		5,000.00	649,700.00	ω	_	_	333,100.00			Value of Parsonage Property
2,141,359.65					200,000.00	269,900.00	864,500.00						17,459.65									50,000.00	65,000.00			65,000.00			175,000.00	135,000.00		\$299,500.00	Value of Associational and State Property